
Call to Order 

City-wide Parking Ad Hoc Committee 

Wednesday, March 18, 2015 

M EETING MINUTES 

Co-chair Mordo opened the meeting at 9:17a.m. 

Roll Call (.., =Committee members in attendance) 
.., Ronit Bodner (arrived at 9:22) .., Jean Mordo 
.., Jeannie Bruins .., Mark Rogge 
.., Kim Cranston .., David Rock 
.., Gary Hedden Jason Strubing 

ATIACHMENT A 

.., Jack Kelly .., Marcia Somers, CM 

.., Bill Maston (arrived at 9:26) .., James Walgren, CDD 

.., Mike McTighe 

M eeting Schedule 

Reviewed meeting schedule. 

Approval of M arch 11, 2015 meeting minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes M/S: Jack Kelly/David Rock. Motion approved with David Rock and Mike 

McTighe abstaining. 

Review City-wide zoning maps and current codes 

Discussed materia l distributed. Severa l questions and comments were generated. 

• Is there separate consideration for shared parking (parking plazas) vs. onsite parking? 

• Are there ways to accommodate changes in use of existing buildings? 

• Need clarification on how credits are given in parking district 

• Concern regarding properties immediately adjacent to plazas will result in bleed over due to the 

business' customer lack of awareness of where to park 

• Need to understand intent and guiding principles 

• Member of the public suggested the 2009 Fehr & Peers report and the 2007 DMJM Harris report 

be distributed to committee members 

• Do we have consistent documentation and definitions regarding the parking district? 

• Would signage directing clients/customers/patients to onsite parking help? 

Review parking calculations 

Discussed parking at 400 Main, 145 First and 288 First. Two of the three properties changed from a 

retai l use to a restaurant. The third project was a new development and parking requirement was set at 

3/1000 for office use on second story and 5/1000 for retai l use on first story. After development, a 

restaurant is going into a portion of the ground floor. Restaurant parking requirements are calculated 

based on seating. Using the restaurant parking requirements would show the projects are under-



parked. This raised questions regarding "use by right" and what assumptions should be made regarding 

use(s) of a project during the planning of the development improvements. Other discussion points to 

explore are captured in an attachment to these minutes. 

Public comments 

Comments were received from Ted Sorensen, Bart Nelson, Rebecca Maguire, King Lear. 

Next meeting 

April1, 2015, 9:15 a.m.-10:45 a.m. at Hillview Community Center, Room 2, 97 Hillview Avenue. Agenda 

and minutes will be posted in advance. 

Suggested projects for review: Hotel, Safeway, Los Altos Grill, 240 Third Street, Forest at First. Jean and 

Jeannie will consider these inputs in setting the next agenda. 

Adjournment 

Meeting was adjourned at 10:47 a.m. 

City-wide Parking Ad Hoc Committee 
March 18, 2015 - Meeting Minutes page 2 



Attachment 

ADDITIONAL TOPICS 

• Some uses are "by right"- new tenant going in and property is zoned for that use 

• Not all uses have the same parking requirement therefore a "Use by Right" may result in a 

parking shortfall (e.g., retail vs. restaurant) 

• Look at what other cities do that have parking districts 

• Review parking ratios in other cities 

• Develop scenarios 

o Use by right (existing bldg.), new development 

o Types of use -mixed, long-term, short-term 

o Properties in the parking district, abutting a parking plaza 

o Use by time of day- peak time, complementary uses 

o Shared parking concepts 

• Understand mix- today vs. future 

• Discuss "shopping center" model; the City does not have control over the mix of tenants 

City-wide Parking Ad Hoc Committee 
March 18, 2015- Meeting Minutes page 3 



ATTACHMENT B 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: City-wide Parking Conunittee 

FROM: James Walgren, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: City-wide Parking Committee meeting information 

BACKGROUND 

T he City-wide Parking Conunittee held its second meeting on Iviarch 18, 2015 and following 
discussion regarding several past project approvals, the Committee moved to meet on April 1, 2015 
and consider the following: 

Parking calculations and available parking for development projects: 
• 86 Third Street 
• 240 Third Street 
• One Main Street 

The Committee also wanted to continue their discussion of current parking codes and ratios. To 
that end, the March 18, 2015 parking code materials are included with tllis report - Attachment 1. 

DISCUSSION 

86 Third Street- Office and Residential Project 

Tills mi'<ed-use project includes 5,525 square feet of office on tl1e ground floor and 20 residential 
condominium units on the second and third floors. T he office space is parked at 3.3 spaces per 
each 1,000 square feet of net building area with 19 parking spaces (18 spaces required), and the 20 
residential units are parked at two spaces per unit witl1 after-hours and weekend office parking 
serving as guest parking. There may be some shared parking witl1 tl1e office uses in the public 
parking plazas for people who are visiting Downtown and then doing business at 86 Third Street, 
but since the building is fully parked it will not likely be an issue. Plus, business appointments arc 
pretty specific events versus visiting Downtown to shop and eat. 

The City Council staff report and project plans can be viewed on the City's website unde.t the 
" i\ gcndas" tab for tl1e May 28, 2013 meeting. 

240 Third Street - Office and Residential Proiect . 

Tllis mixed-use project includes 7,183 square feet of office on tl1e ground floor, 8,447 square feet of 
office on the second floor and two residential units on tl1e third floor. Retail on the ground floor is 



permitted, but real estate professionals have shared with staff that they do not believe a retail 
business would be successful at this location. 
The office space is parked at 3.3 spaces per each 1,000 St}Uare feet of net building area with 53 
parking spaces (52 required), and the two residential units are parked at two spaces per unit, again 
with after-hours and weekend office parking serving as guest parking. If the grow1d floor were used 
for retail, the project would be under-parked by 11 spaces. This was understood and accepted by 
the City Council in 2008 based on a shared parking analysis that a retail business would not 
necessarily be a single car-trip visit but would include a proportion of Downtown shared use 
visitors. 

The City Council staff report and project plans can be viewed on the City's website for the April 22, 
2008 meeting. 

One Main Street- E nchantc Hotel 

The two above projects are outside the parking district. The Enchante Hotel is in the public parking 
district and parking is not required for the first 100% of floor area ratio. The 10 parking spaces 
required for the additional floor area above the 100% ratio were not required by the City Council 
based on the economic public benefit findings of having a hotel Downtown on this long-vacant 
parcel, and the dedication of the private pla7-a for public usc. The staff report analysis included the 
following parking discussion: 

"With regard to parking requirements, the site is located within the public parking district. As 
such, no on-site parking is required for the fust 100 percent of the site's floor area ratio. Since 
the floor area for the project is approximately 200 percent of the lot size, the Code requires that 
half of the proposed hotel parking be provided on-site. For hotel uses, the Code requires one 
parking space for every three employees, plus one additional space for each sleeping room or 
suite. For a hotel with 19 rooms (18 rooms plus the manager's unit) and two to three employees 
on-site at any one time, a total of 20 parking spaces would be required. Therefore 10 spaces, 
half of the total required, would need to be provided on-site. 

While the project's floor area is 200 percent of the site area, the hotel use will generate 
substantially less parking demand than an equivalently sized retail and/ or office building. Based 
on the City's parking requirements, a commercial building (office and/ or retail) of up to 6,067 
square feet (1 00 percent of tl1e lot size) would require between 20 and 30 parking spaces, 
respectively, without needing to provide any on-site parking. By use, the hotel will require only 
20 parking spaces. Therefore, even though the project is larger in terms of overall square 
footage, the hotel usc requires parking that is equal to a 6,000 square feet office building, and 
requires 10 fewer spaces tl1an a 6,000 square feet retail building." 

The staff report and project plans can also be viewed on the City's website for the September 14, 
2010 meeting. In addition to tl1e public benefit findings that were determined, Council also noted 
that the hotel parking demand is primarily in the afternoons and evenings when there is plentiful 
public parking available. 

i\llowccl Zoning Uses 

The City's commercial zoning districts allow certain business uses as "permitted-by-right" or 
"conditionally pennitted", or outright prohibited if not included in one of these categories. In the 

April 1, 2015 
City-wide Parking Conunittee Page 2 



Downtown Commercial Retail Sales (CRS) zoning district, the on ly two permitted-by-right business 
uses for ground floor buildings on Main Street, State Street and First Street arc retail and restaurants. 

A variety of office and personal services uses are allowed by-right on the above-grade floors. 
Conditionally permitted uses, meaning they require that a conditional use pennit be approved with 
fmdings by the Planning and Transportation Comrnission, include businesses like "cocktail lounges", 
which is essentially an independent bat not associated with a restaurant. The CRS zoning ordinance 
is included with this report -Attachment 2. 

Restaurants do often have a different parking demand than retail businesses. There are two 
approaches to regulating restaurants in retail districts, excluding shopping centers where shared 
parking has been factored in: 

1. Maintain allowing restaurants in retail districts as a permitted-by-right use, or 

2. Require a conditional use permit for restaurants that ate displacing a retail business and include 
in the permit requirement that a parking demand analysis be done. 

The latter is what the City Council recently adopted for medical clinics based on parking concerns. 
This would though create an approximately eight week public hearing process and tl1e need to do a 
parking demand analysis for each proposed new restaurant. 

It should be clarified that the 12,464 square feet of ground floor space at 400 Main Street is parked 
at 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet of net building area with 63 patldng spaces (62 requited) and that 
the restaurant will have a Downtown shared use component - not everyone who goes to lunch at 
Cetrella will be driving. Office workers that are already Downtown will patronize the restaurant, as 
opposed to a restaurant on E l Camino Real, for example, that may only generate car-trip customers. 
It is also worth noting that the Pharmaca business will have a low-parking demand. 

Attachments: 

1. March 18, 2015 Committee Report 
2. CRS Zoning Ordinance 

April1, 2015 
City-wide Parking Conunittee Page 3 



ATTACHMENT 1 

TO: City-wide Parking Conmlittce 

FROl'vi: .James \XI: tlgn.:n, C<>mmunity Development Director 

SUBJECT: City-wide Parking Committee meeting information 

BACKGROUND 

At the first City-wide Parking Committee meeting held on March 11, 20 15, the Committee members 
introduced thcmsciYes and expressed their interest in parcicipnting on the Conmuttee. Following 
discussion, tli.rection was then gi\·en to pro,-idc the following informacion for the i\[atch 18, 2015 
meeting: 

I. City-wide zoning map and current codes regarding parking 

2. Parking calculations and nvnilable pnrking for denlopment projects: 
• 145 ril'St Street 
• 288 ri.rst Street 
• 400 Main Street 

DISCUSSION 

City-wide Zoning Map 

r\ ttachcd is the City zoning map with a legend describing the individual districts. The corresponding 
zoning codes cnn be viewed online at \V\V\V.mtuucodc.com/libmry /ca/l<>s altos/codes. These 
districts mnge from predominantly single-family residential to multiple-family, commercial and 
institutionnl. Commercial districts nllow a wide range of business activities and mixed-use 
dc,·clopmcnts that may have different parking demand requi.remcncs. A mixed-use project with 
retniJ on the ground floor, office on the second floor nnd rcsidentinl units on the third floor would 
hm·e r.hree independent parking requirements. In summ:tt)', the mosr common pnrking demnnd 
tcquircn"'cnts nrc as follows: 

Office 3.3 pnrking spaces per 1,000 square feet of net building nrea 
Service 5 pnrking spaces per 1,000 sc1uare feel of nel building an:n 
Remil 5 pnrk.ing spnces per 1,000 sguare feet of net building aren 
Restnuranr I pnrking space for every tl1ree chairs plus l per Vt:l")' rhrt:<.: e::mployees 
SFR I lousing 2 parking spaces per mut 
t\ [I ;R ll C>llsing 2 parking spaces per unit plus I guest parking space for every four units 



The aforcmentjoncd arc a cursoq sununary of the most common land usc types. The attached 
parking ordinance represents the full range of parking standards that may apply. For uruque land 
uses such as medical clinics and hospitals, p1-ivate schools or senior living facilities, parking demand 
needs to be C\•aluated based on that specific activity model via a conditional usc permit and parking 
demand nnalysis - there is no single parking standard that would be adequate. These analyses need 
to consider how many employees, users, special events, support staff, etc., will occupy the project 
site nt a peak period. 

Parking Calculations and Available Parking for Development Projects 

145 l.'ir::;t Street- Bumble Restaurant 

This CD /R3 :.wncd bujlcling was formerly an antiques retail store. It is an existing no nconforming 
building in thnt with four parking spaces it was under-parked for thnt business. Existing 
nonconforming businesses are allowed to continue up until the point where a property is 
redeveloped. T he 13umble restaurant project included a sigruficant remodel and renovation of this 
then-aging building and initiated a revitalization of this section of First Street. 

The rescaurnnt provides four parking spaces and is under-parked for either a retail business or a 
restaurant. Since both activities are allowed uses in the CRS and the CD/R3 zoning districts, the 
restaurant was allowed w establish in this nonconforming building. 

288 First SLreel- Voyageur du Temps Restaurant 

rl11e Voyegeur restaurant occupies the historic Train Depot building, the actual train depot when 
Foothill Expressway still operated as the SPRR corridor. T his historic building, built in 1913, was 
also extensively renovated in 2011 when it was converted from Maria's Antiques to the current 
restaurant. Prior to Maria's, the building had been used for a restaurant and a bank at different 
points in time. 

The restamant provides 14 parking spaces and is also under-parked for either a retail business or a 
restaurnnt. i\n again, since both nctivities arc allowed uses in the CRS and the CD / R3 zoning 
districts, the rcstaumnt was allowed to establish in tlus nonconforming building. This is consistent 
with how shopping centers and tl1e Downtown Public Parking District arc regulated. 

400 Mnin Street- l\[L'\ed-Use Retail/Restaurant and Office Building 

As part of the Option to Purchase Agreement negotiations between the City Council and now 
property owner Jeffrey 1\[orris, the Council also approved a Development Agreement in 2011 that 
included an implementing ordinance and supporting CEQA documents for 400 t\Iain Street. ·n1ese 
documents were reviewed and approved by the Planning Commjssion and City Council at publicly 
noticed meetings. 

March 18, 20 IS 
City-wide Parking Committee Page 2 



For reference, the public hearing dates were: 

September 14. 2010 
City Council appro,·es an Option to Purchase r\greemenL 

January 6. 2011 
Planning Commission considers CEQ,-\ documents and De,·elopment 1\greement 

January 25. 20 II 
City Council adopt·s CF.Q,-\ documents 

Apt:il 12. 201·1 
City Council approves the Development Agreement 

When the Option to Purchase and Development Agreements were approved, and prior to design 
plans going through extensive public review, it was determ.ined that the ground floor of the new 
building would be limited to retail and restaurant uses pursuant to the CRS zoning regulations and 
the expectations for Main and State Streets. Prior to that action, First Street was allowed to ha,·e 
sen·ice uses on the ground floor such as beauty salons, nail parlors, typewriter repair, dq cleaners, 
and other similar business activities. It was agreed d1at retail and restaurant would foster economic 
support for d1e Downtown retail core and provide d1e best visitor and pedestrian experience. Since 
d1ere was no business proposal at d1at time - i.e., no restaurant plan with chairs to count - the 
12,464 S<.JUarc feet of ground floor space was parked at 5 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of net 
building area. The 18,541 square feet of second floor office space was parked at 3.3 parking spaces 
per 1,000 square feet of net building area as follows: 

First floor: 12,464 sq. ft. x 5/1,000 = 62 rectuirecl parking spaces (63 provided) 
Second floor: 18,541 sq. ft. x 3.3/1,000 = 61 required parking spaces (62 provided) 

The design plans reviewed and recommended by the Planning and Transportation Commission and 
approved by the City Council, at public meetings, represented restaurant uses with outdoor plaza 
dining. The plaza use agreement was specifically drafted to both allow outdoor dining and to allow 
public access to this private plaza. 

Attnchments 
l. Chapter l4.74 of the Municipal Code- Parking Regulations 
2. City-wide l.oning Map 

March I 8, 20 L 5 
City-wide P:u:king Committee Page 3 



C hapter 14.74 

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 

Sections: 

14.74.010 R-1 District requirements. 

14.74.020 Reserved. 

14.74.030 R3-5 District requirements. 

14.74.040 R3-4.5 Dis trict requirements. 

14.7 4.050 R3-3 District requirements. 

14.7 4.060 R3-1.8 District requirements. 

14.74.070 R3-l District requirements. 

14.74.080 Residentia l uses in CN, CD, 
CD/R3, CRS/OAD, CRS and CT 

Districts. 

14.74.090 Reserved. 

14.74.100 Office uses in CRS/OAD, OA, 
CN, C D, C D/R3, CRS and CT 
Districts. 

14.74.1 10 Commcrcil\1 uses in CRS/OAD, 
OA, CN, CO, CD/R3, CRS and 
CT Districts. 

14.74.120 Community faciliti es. 

14.74.130 Plant nurseries. 

14.74.140 Other uses. 

14.74. 150 Mixed use det·elopment. 

14.74.160 Off-street loading spaces. 

14.74.170 Common parking facilities. 

14.74. 180 Off-street parking and loading 

spaces. 

14.74.190 Reduction of off-street parking 
and loading spaces. 

14.74.200 Development standards for 
off-stret>t parking and truck 
loa ding spaces. 

14.74.010 R- 1 District requirements. 

!\ . Nt)t less than t\\'O park ing spaces. t1llt' t)f 
which shall be co,·er~d. shall be required for each 
li\'ing unit. including second liYing units dt'\d
npcd undt.!r the pro,·i~ions of Chapter 14.14 nf th is 
titk. 

13. All required parking spaces shall be pro
vided on-site. 

C. No commercial vehicle or trailer over a 
gross vehicle weigh t of six thousa nd (6.000) pounds 
shall be parked , stored, or otherwise left unat
tended at any place within the R-1 District, except 
whik actually engaged in pickup or delivery activ
ities. or during the course of the actual construc
tion. alteration. or repair of structures in the im
media te proximity, or unless kept en tirely in an 
enclosed parking structu re or behind a solid fence 
or •va ll not less than six feet in height. (Prior code 
* 10-2.2301) 

14.74.020 Resen ·ed. 

Editor'< nnt<--Ord. No ~012·375. ~ ~ .• llloptcd Jan. 24. :!01:!, 

rcpcak•d ~ 1·1.7.1 IJ20\\hid1 )'ll:rtain,·d tv RI · IOdist•ict requ~rcm~nts 
ami dc rhcd fr<ll11 ~ IU·!. ~lll~ uf the prior ..:nde 

14.74.030 R3-5 District requirements. 

Not less than two parking spaces for each 
dwelling unit in a multiple-family unit or apart
ment. one of which shall be covered, shall be 
required . (Ord. 07-312 ~ 9 (part): prior code 
§ 10-2.230.1) 

14.74.0-lO R3-4.5 Dis trict requirements. 

Not less than two parking spaces for each 
dwelling unit in a multiple-family unit or apart
men t. one or which !'hall be covered, shall be 
required . tOn.!. 07-312 ~ 9 (part) ; prior code 
§ 10-2.2.104) 

14.74.050 R3-3 District requirements. 

Not less than two parking spaces for each 
dwelling unit in a multiple-f<tmily unit or apart
ment. one of ,,·hich shall he covered. shall be 
required . ( Ord. 07-1 12 ~ 9 ( ra rt )} 

14.7-U)60 H3-I.H District rctJnirements. 

i\ . T\\'o spaces. one ,)r \\'hich shall be cm·ercd. 
1'~11· each dwelling unit in a mult ipk-family dwell 
ing or .tpartmcntlwuse ha\ ing two rooms or more 
in additi('ll to thl' kitchen and hathrooms shall be 
f't'q lli l'l'd 

ATTACHMENT 1 



D. One and one-ha lf spaces. one of which 
shall be covered. for each dwelling unit in a multiple
family dwelling or apartment house having less 

th an two rooms in addition to the kitchen and 
bathrooms shall be required. 

C. One on-site visitor space shall be req uired 
for every four multifamily residential dwelling units 
or fraction thereof. (Ord. 07-312 * 9 (pari ): Ord. 
02-410*4: prio r code§ 10-2.2305) 

14.74.070 IU -1 District requirements. 

A. There shall be two underground oiT-strcct 
parking spaces for each dwelling unit in a multiple
family dwelling or apartment house having two 
rooms or more in addition to the kitchens and 
bathrooms. 

B. There shall be one and one-half under
ground ofT-st reet parking spaces for each dwelling 
unit in a multiple-family dwelling or apartment 
house having less than two rooms in addition to 
the kitchens and bathrooms. 

C. Projects with a site a rea less than thirty 
thousand (30,000) squa re feet may provide up to a 
maximum of o ne-hal f of the required parking 
above-ground . The proposed parking plan shHII 
be subject to the approval of the commission and 
council. 

D. One on-site visit or space shall be required 
for every fou r multiple-family residentia l dwelling 
units or fraction thereof. (Ord . 07-3 12 § 9 (part): 

pri01· code§ I 0-2.2305.1) 
(Ord. No. 2012-375, § 9, 1-24-20 12) 

14.74.080 Residential uses in CN, CD, CD/R3, 
CRS/OAD, CRS and CT Districts. 

For those properties which participated in a 
public parking district, no parking shall be re
quired for the net square foo tage which dQcs not 
nceed one hundred ( 100) percent of the lot area. 
Parking shall be required as follows for any net 
square footage in excess of 0nc hundred 1 I 00) 

-,)_.) 

14.74. 100 

percent of the lot area and for those properties 
which did not participate in a public parking dis
trict: 

A. There sha II be I\\"O oll'-street parking spaces 
for each dwelling unit in a multiple-family dwell
ing or apartment house having two rooms or more 
in addition to the kitchens and bathrooms. 

13. There sha II he l)llC and one-ha If oll'-st reel 
parking spaces ft1r each dwelling. unit in H multiple
family dwelling or apartment house having less 
than two rooms in addition to the kitchens and 
bathrooms. 

C. One on-site visitor space shall be required 
for every four multiple-family resident ill! dwelling 
units or fraction thereof. Mixed use projects may 
substitute nonresidential parking spaces for visi
tor usc in-lieu of providing dedicated visitor park
ing spaces, subject to approva I of the commission 
and council. (Ord . 07-312 § 9 {part): Ord. 05-294 
§3(part)) 
(Ord . No. 2012-375, § 10. 1-24-201 2) 

14.74.090 Reser'"cd. 

Editor's note- Ord. N''· 2012·375, §II. adopt.:d Jan . 24. 2012, 
repo:akd ~ 1-1.7·1.090 \lohkh penamcd to nffil"l! uses in the OA-1. 
OA-4.5 und CN d iSirict and dcri,cJ from§ 10· 2.2306 or the prior 
Cl>dc: On.l. Nu. 05-:!9-1 . ~ J(p..rl): Ord. Nn. 07-3 12. § '>(part); ~111d On!. 
No. 10- l-l!q 7. adnptcd April 13. 2UJO. 

14.74. 100 Office uses in CRS/OAD, OA, CN, 
CD, CD/R3, CRS and CT Districts. 

For those properties which participated in a 
public park ing district , no parking sha ll be re
quired for the net square footage which does not 
exceed one hu ndred (100) percent of the lot area. 
Parking shall be required for any net square foot
age in excess of one hundred (100) percent of the 
lot area and for those properties which did not 
participate in a public parking district and shall be 
not less than one parking space for each three 
hundred (300) square feet of net noor area.(Ord. 
07-3 I 2 S 9 (part) : Onl. 05-294 § 3 {pan): prior code 
~ 10-2.2307) 
lOrd . No. 1 0-~4X, § R. 4- 1 ~-20 1 0: Ord. No. 20 12-
~75.~ 12. 1-24-201 2) 



14.74.11 0 

14.74.110 Commercial uses in CRS/OAD, 

OA, C N, CO, CO/R3, CRS and CT 
Dis tricts. 

For 1 hose pmp~tl ic~ whKh part~~:ipat~J in a 

public parking district. no parking shall be re
qui red for the net square footage which does not 
exceed one hundred ( I 00) percent of the lot area. 
Parking shall be r~qu ircJ as rolll)\\·:-. ~~ ~~·any n~ t 

sqmtre footage in excess of one hundred ( 100) 
percent of the lot area and for those properties 
which did not participate in a public parking dis-
trict. 

A. For intensive reta il uses and personal ser
vices. not less than one parking space for each two 
hundred (200) square feet of net Ooor area: 

B. For extensive reta il uses, not less than one 
parking space for each fi ve hundred (500) square 
feet of net noor area; 

C. For business, professional and trade 
schools, one pa rking space for every three employ
ees, including teachers and administrators, plus 
one additional space for every two students; 

D. For bars. cafes, nightclubs, restaurants, and 
soda fountains, one parking space for every th ree 
employees. plus one space for every three scats 
provided lo r patrons. and such additional parking 
spaces as may be prescribed by the commi ssion: 

E. For bowling alleys, one parking space for 
every threl.! employees. plus six add itional parking 
spaces for euch alley: 

F. For pool halls, one parking space for every 
three employees, plus one additional parking space 
lor each pool table: 

G. For other types of commercial recreation 
establishments, one p<1 rking space lor every three 
employees. plus such addi tional parking spaces as 
may be prescribed by the planning commission: 

11. r or hotels and motels, one parking span· 
for every three employees. plus one addit iona l 
space for each sleeping room or suite. and at.kli
tional parking spaces as prescribed in subsection 
A (l f this sec tion fnr any store. scn·icc establish
men t. sht1p, or studio located on the ~ite. ;1nd 

526 

additional parking spaces as prescribed in subsec
tion C of this section for any bar, cafe. nightclub, 
restaurant. or soda fountain located on the site: 

I. I tlt tn<lrtuanc:-.. one parking space for cY

ery three employees, and one add itional space for 
each hearse and funeral car owned or hi red by the 
mortuary. plus the number of spaces prescribed 
by tht> pbnnin!! commis<::ion for visitors and per
sons atknding funerals; 

J. For theaters and auditoriums. one park ing 
space for every four seals, plus one additional 
spnce for every three employees; and 

K . For automobile display or snlesrooms, bus 
depots, drive-in bank s, drive-in restaurants, repair 
ga rages, and storage ga rages, one parking space 
for every three employees, plus such additional 
parking spaces as prescribed by the planning com
mission or city council. (Ord. 07-312 § 9 (part); 
Ord. 07-306 § 7: Ord. 05-294 § 3 (part): prior code 
§ I 0-2.2308) 
!Onl. No. 2012-375, § 13, 1-24-2012) 

14.74.120 Community facilities. 

Parking space requirements sha ll be as fol
lows: 

A. For public, parochial, and private schools 
and lor nursery schools. chu rch schools, and col 
leges. one parking space for every two employees, 
including teachers and administrators, plus sulli
cient space for the safe, convenient loading and 
unloading of st uclents, and such additional area 
for student and visitor parking as may be pre
scri bed by the commission; 

B. For public playgrounds, parks, commu
nity cen ters, and other public buildings, struc
tures. and fac ilit ies. one parking space for every 
two employees. plus such add itional parking area 
as may be prescribed by the commission: 

C. For day-care centers and private nonprolit 
recreation faci l it ie~. one parking space for every 
two employees. plus such additional parking area 
as may be prescribed hy the commission: 

D. Fo r churches. not less than one parking 
space for e\·ery th ree and one-half sents in the 
main S<l nctua ry. plus one addi tiona l space lt)r each 



church officia l resident on the premises, and one 
add itional space for every two employees, plus 
such additional parking area as may be prescribed 
h\ the L:dll11l li ~siun : 

E. For rn o nastt:rics, convents, and other reli
gio us instituti o ns, one parking space for every two 
employees. plus sueh additional parking area as 
m:1~ be prcscrihcd by the l'(lllllllission: 

F. For golf cou rses. country clubs. and pri
vate commercial clubs, one parking space for ev
ery two employees. plus such additional parking 
area as may be prescribed by the commission; 

G. For pri vate noncommercial clubs, o ther 
than country clubs, one parking space for every 
two employees, plus one parking space for every 
three members, or, in the a lternative, such addi
tionaJ parking area for members as may be pre
scribed by the commission; 

H. For libraries, museums, and noncommer
cia l art galleries. one parking space for every two 
employees, plus such additional parking area as 
may be prescribed by the commission; 

I. For institutions of an educational or phil
anthropic nature, one parking space for every two 
employees, plus such additional parking area as 
may be prescribed by the commission; 

J. For public utility service structures or in
stallations. one parking space for every two em
ployees; 

K . For hospitals, one parking space for every 
two patient beds, plus one additional space for 
each staff doctor and one space for every three 
employees, includ ing nurses. Loading space for 
ambulances and similar vehicles shall not be in
cluded therein: 

L. For nursi ng !~orne and convalescent hospi
ta ls, one-half of one pnrking space for each bed. 
plus additiona l parking space as may be deter
min~<! hy the pln nn ing commission and city coun
cil: 

M. For re tirement homes, three-fourths of 
one parking space for each dwelling unit, plus 
additional parking spaces as may be determined 
by the plann ing commission and ci ty council; nne! 

527 

14.74.150 

N. r or residential care homes for aged per
sons on sites containing ten 1 housand (I 0.000) to 
fort y-three thous:md fi ve hundred sixty (4:\ . .'i60) 
:-.q uill'.: fcL'I. nul k:-.:. 1 ha n 1>11.: ga fa):!.: I) I' ~,·;1 rp1' rl. 
plus one parking space: prO\·iuctl , however, in the 
event there a re more than two vehicles, additional 
space shall be pro,·ided for each additional vehic lt> 
beyond the required front yard setback in a~:cor· 

dance with plans approved by the commission. 
The occupants of the ca re horne shall be prohib
ited from parking their vehicles oJT site. (Ord . 
07-3 12 § 9 (part); Ord. 05-294 * 3 (part): pri01· code 
~ 10-2.23 11) 

14.74.130 P lant nurseries. 

Parking space requirements shall be as fo l
lows: 

A . Ten (I 0) parking spaces for each acre, or 
fraction thereof, contained in the site, plus such 
additional parking spaces as may be prescribed by 
lhe commission; or 

B. One parking space fo r every three employ
ees, plus such additional parking spaces as may be 
prescribed by the commission. (Ord. 07-312 § 9 
(part); Ord. 05-294 § 3 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2.2312) 

14.74.140 Other uses. 

Other uses not specifica lly set forth in the 
fo regoing sections or thi s chapter shall furnish 
parking as prescribed by the commission. I n de
termining the otT-street parking requirements for 
such uses. the commission shall use the foregoing 
req uirements as a general guide and shall deter
mine the minimum number of parking spaces nec
essary to avoid undue interference with the public 
usc of streets and alleys. (Ord. 07-3 12 § 9 (part): 
Ord. 05-294 § 3 (part): prior code§ I 0-2.2313) 

14.74.150 Mixed usc dcwloJnncnt. 

Where more th an one u~e is included in one 
bui ltling or on a single parcel. the parking require
ments sha ll be the sum total of the requirements of 
all the uses; provided. however, when determined 
hy the city that a n1nOic1 in demand for parking 

Supp. t\o ~~~ 



14.74.150 

wi ll not occur. parking requirements may be com
bined. Appropriate legal docu men ts. as approved 
by the cit y atl nrney. shall be executed when '>l1L"I1 

conl hina tli)ll is a ppr\)\~d . ;\11~ u~c ,,r building 

requiring li,·c.: -tcnths or more parking spa .... ·c· :.hall 
be deemed to require a full space. (Ord. 07-312 § 9 
(part): Ord. 05-294 ~ 3 (part): prior code 
~ 1 0-2.::!~ 14) 

(Ord . No. 10-348. s 10. 4-13-2010) 

14.74.160 Off-street loading spaces. 

Loading spaces sha ll be provideu on the site of 
each of the permitted uses in the CN, CN-T. CD, 
CT. Community Faci lit ies. and Plant Nursery dis

tricts when found by the commission to require 
the receipt or distribution of materials by vehicles 
or when found to be necessary for the public safety 
or welfare. T he number of spaces shall be deter
mined on the basis of the number of anticipated 
truck movements. (Ord. 07-3 I 2 § 9 (part); Ord. 
05-294 § 3 (part); prior code§ I 0-2.23 15) 

14.74.170 Common parking facilities. 
Parking space req ui rements prescribed in this 

chapter may be satisfied by the permanent a lloca
tion of the required area or number of spaces for 
each permitted use in a common parking facility, 
cooperatively established and operated, either un
der private auspices or a public assessment dis
trict, which incl udes the si te of any use permit ted 
under this chapter, provided the to tal num ber of 
spaces a lloca ted sha ll be not less than the sum of 
the individua l requirements, and provided also 
that the parking facility shall be within three hun
dred (300) feet of the site or the permitted use. and 
further provided that the parking facility meets 
the design standards set forth in this chapter. When 
oiT-site parking spaces are provided as prescribed. 
appropriate legal documents, as approved by the 
city attorney. shall be exec uted to insure perma
nent use of such spaces. (Ord . 07-~ 11 § 9 (part ); 

Ord . 05-294 ~~(part ): prior code* 10-2.23 16) 

14.74.180 Off-st reet parking and loading 
spaces. 

No parking space or load ing space provided 
on one site for u structure or a use in compliance 

~UilP Nt>. 10 528 

with the regulations for the district in which it is 
locnted shn II be deemed to provide a parking space 
or loading space for a stnlt'ltlrl.: M usc on an~· 

il l h~·r :-. it~·. tOrd. IJ / .J 1.2 ~ 9 tp;trl 1: Urd. ~~~-~ 'J-1 ~ .\ 

(pan): prior codes 10-2. 2:1 17) 

14.74. 190 Reduction of off-street J>:trking and 
loading spaces. 

No parking space or truck lo<'lding space pro
vided for a structure or use in compliance with the 
regulations for the district in which it is located 
sha ll be reduced in area or capaci ty wi th out suffi
cient addi ti onal area or r<1paci ty bt!ing pro,·ided to 
comply with the district regu lations. (Ord. 07-3 12 
§ 9 (part); Ord. 05-294 § 3 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2.23 18) 

14.74.200 Development standards for 
off-street parking and truck loading 
spaces. 

A. Off-street parking faci lities shall conform 
to the foll owing standards: 

I . Perpendicular parking space size. Each stan
dard parking space shall consist of an area not less 
than nine feet wide by eighteen (18) feet long, 
except as noted on the drawing labeled "Parking. 
Standards Exhibit A" on file in the office of the 
planning department. 

2. Handicapped persons perpendicular pa rk
ing space size. Pa rking stalls for the use of the 
physically handicapped sha ll comply with there
quirements set forth in ])art 2 of Ti tle 24 of the 
California Administ rative Code and Chapter 9 of 
Division II of the Vehicle Code of the state. 

3. Truck loading space size. Truck loading 
spaces shall not be less than ten (I 0) feet wide by 
twenty-five (25) fee t long. 

4. Clea rance. Standard and c~)mpact parking 
spaces shall have a vertical clearance or at leas1 
seven fee t over the entire area . In add ition. the 
spaces shall be clear horizontally (for example. 
pillars in a basemen l or parking structure shall not 
be located in required parking spaces). Truck load
ing spaces sha ll have a vertical clearance or at least 
fourteen ( 14) feet. 



B. Each parking and loading space sha ll be 
accessible from a public street or alley. 

C. The parkin!! and loading area shall be ra,·ed 
'' ith an all-weather asphaltic ClliKn:tc or ponlanu 
cement concrete pavement and marked in accor
dance with the city engineering standards (not 
applicable for single-fami ly dwellings). 

D. Concrete bumper gumus o r " ·heel stop:-. 
sha ll be provided for all parking spaces. except as 
provided in this section. The concrete curb around 
a perimeter landscaped area shall not be used as a 
bumper stop unless approved by the commission 
and the cou neil . T n such cases. the commission and 
the council may allow a parking space length to be 
reduced by two feet. 

E. Lighting shall be deOected downward and 
away from any residential property. 

F. No advertising or sign, other than identifi
cation or direction signs, shall be permitted in the 
parking or loading area. 

G. No repair or servicing of vehicles shall be 
permitted in the parking or loading area. 

H. No area which lies within the precise plan 
line for a public street or alley adopted by the 
council sha ll be computed as satisfying the park
ing and loading space requirements of this chap
ter. 

I. A parking area abulting on property in an 
R District or across a street or an alley from 
property in an R District shall be screened , subject 
to the approval of the planning department, by a 
solid fence or wall or a compact evergreen hedge 
or other screening not less than six feet high, 
subject to the provisions of Chapter 14.72 of this 
title regulating fences (not applicable for single
family dwellings). 

J. The minimum width of a one-way drive 
shall be twelve (12) feet. 

K. The minimum width of a two-way drive 
shall be eighteen ( 18) feet. 

L. Space for turning around on the site shall 
be provided for parking areas of three or more 
spaces so that no cars need back into the street 
(not applicable for single-family dwellings). 

529 

14.74.200 

M. Parnllel and acute angle parking sh<lll be 
designed for one- way trallic on!~ . unless ot hcrwisc 
specified hy thr commi:-sion . 

!\ . I Il l' lll llll lll l llll :-. tanJard:- 1\)1' thl· dc!>l1!1lu l 

oll '-strcct pa rking art:as shall be in ;Kcordancc 
with those shown 0 11 the drawing labeled "Parking 
Standards Exhibit A " on file in the ollice of the 
planning department. 

0. 1 r found to be necessary or desirable by 
the city, the design standards set forth in this 
sectio n may be waived for public and community 
facility uses or commercially operated public park
ing faci lities in order to permit attended or super
vised parking. 

P. District requirements resulting in one-half 
or greater parking space shall be deemed to re
quire a full space. 

Q. For the purposes of this section, "net square 
footage" shall mean the total horizontal area in 
square feet on each noor, including basements. 
but not including the area of inner courts or shaft 
enclosures. (Ord. 07-312§§9 (part), I 0; Ord. 05-294 
§ 3 (part); prior code§ I 0-2.2319) 
(Ord. No. I 0-348, § 1 I. 4- 13-2010; Ord. No. 2012-
375, § 14, 1-24-20 12) 

Supp No ~ I 



Cotyol 

./ 
; 

row11of 
lvtAIIus lhlls 

Zoning Oesignolions 

L~ Rl ·S Sing!e.Story Ovetla.,. 

Rl · IO Single ·fom.ly 

Rl oH Si"~le·Fom•ly 

R1 ·20 Sing~·fom•lr 

U · .tO Stngt.-Fonuly 

I U • "' Multipf..Fomoly 

CO/It3 Con•merciol ~nlown/Multtple Farnity .. 

I CN Con1m•tC'Iol N.-.gkborhood -D 

I CRS Comnwcool R• tnol Solo• -

.. CRS/OAO Cornnuudol Retail Soles!Oifico U 

PCF Publi-c and ComMul\ily Fociltli" 

PCF/ RI -10 Public ond 
Community Focilflloeto/ Sif"Jt. fnmoly 

PC PlonrMd Community 

LCSPZ Loyola Come" 
Spec:iric Plal'l Ovetloy 

PUO Plnnn..d Unit Ot~vttl otlnHWI 

Ciry of Los Alros 
ZoNiNq MAp 

ll ,/ ! 

r, Pork 

SdtOtJI R<~YtWid by AfCOM 
\ Vpt.luled Ce<emb@r S. 20 11 

~ -'!H I - • ·- City ftoundory 

Plcumino Areo 80u11cklry N 0 '2.000 



C hapter 14.48 

ens COMMERCIAL RETAIL SALES 
DISTRICT * 

Sections: 

14.48.010 C RS District. 

14.48.020 Vision statement and specific 
purposes (C RS ). 

14.48.030 Permitted uses (C RS). 

J 4.48.040 Conditional uses and structures 
(CRS). 

14.48.050 Required conditions (CRS). 

14.48.()(.,0 Front yard (CRS). 

14.48.070 Side yards (C RS ). 

14.48.080 Rear yard (C RS). 

14.48.090 Off-stree t parking (C RS ). 

14.48.100 C ommon parking f:1cilities 
(CRS ). 

J 4.48.110 Off-street lo11ding and refuse 
collection (C HS ). 

14.48.120 Height of structures (C RS). 

14.48.130 Design control (C RS). 

J 4.48.140 Nonconforming usc regulations 
(CRS). 

14.48.150 S igns (CRS). 

14.48.160 Fences (C RS). 

14.48.J70 Res toration of nonconforming 
s tructures (CRS). 

14.48. 180 ExCCiltions for public benefit 
(C RS). 

• l ·.ditur·~ N•lle: Thl· tll k of Ch;~pl~r 14 -IX '"'' aml'nded by Ord. 
0(>-2tJ~ § 5. 

14.48.010 C RS District. 
The regulat ions. general prov isio ns. ami excep

ti ons set fo rth in this chapter anJ in Chapter 14.66 
or this t itle shnll npply in the CRS D istrict. (Ord . 
05-294 ~ 2 (part): Onl. 05-289 ~ 2 ( pa rt ): prior coJ e 

* 10 ·2. 190 1) 

J..a.41t020 Vision s tat<'mcnt and specific 
purposes (CRS). 

The cit y shall retain and enhance the down
town Los Altos village nlmnsplu:re a nd sha ll seek 

~"1'1" Nu l i 450 

ATTACHMENT 2 

to allract businesses to the village. T he primary 
characterist ics of the desired village atmosphere 
include: 

A. A mix of uses emphasizing retail busi
nesses and services that meet the needs of commu
nit y residents and visitors, and with housing lo
cated aboveground noor businesses; 

B. Buildings and strcctscape elements that en
hance the pedestrian experience. reflect qua lit y 
design, present a d iversity of nppcara nccs. and 
cont ribute to the archi tectura l and historical inter
est of the village; 

C. An allractive, pedestrian-oriented shop
ping environment that encourages social interac
tion. wit h substantial landscaping and open space. 
and adequate public park ing; 

D. Business and specialty stores that wiiJ at
t ract customers from the loca l community a nd 
surro unding regio n; ami 

E. Encouragement of activi ties that enhance 
and extend conunercial vitalit y. incl ud ing night
t ime activities. 

Jn additio n to thc visio n sta tement, the spe
cific purposes li.H 1 he CRS O isl riel arc as fo llows: 

A . Promote the impkmcnt;H ion of t he down
town urba n design plan: 

B. Enco urage pcdest rinn-scalc design and 
minimize bla nk walls a nd other dead spaces at the 
ground level : 

C. Co nt inue the palt em and scale established 
by exist in g. bui ldings by requiring bui lding designs 
that t!x press the underlyinl! twcnt y-live (25) loo t 
frontages o riginally established, cit her by building 
structure or by architectu ral tk sign: 

D. Create co ntinu ous build ing frontage with 
out major int erruptio n by disa ll u\\" ing driveways 
and parking h)tS o n shopping st ree t fm ntages: 

F .. Allo,,· latitude fo r crcll tivc design and a r
chi tectura l ,·ariety wi thin limit s established: 

F. P1 ov1dc pede:-Irian illnen1t ic:-. :-.uch as pasCllS. 
o utdl,or puhlir splice:- and lHitdoor scat inf! : 

G btabl ish a sense or en11y int o thl· down
tnwn: 



I I. Enco urage historic preservation for those 
build ings listed on the city's historic resources in 
ventory: 

I. Encourage I he upgrading or build ing c.:xle
riors. signs, passageways. and rear entries; and 

J. [m:ourage the usc or sola r, photovoltaic, 
and other energy conserving devices. (Ord. 05-294 
§ 2 (part): Ord. 05-289 § 2 {part): Ord . 01-397 § 4: 
prior code§ J 0-2. J 902) 

14.4H.030 Permitted uses (CRS). 
/ 

The fo llowing uses shall be permitted in the 
CRS District: 

t\ . Business. professional, and trade schools 
located above the gro und floo r: 

13. Ollices located above the ground Ooor: 
C. Parking spaces and loading areas inciden

tal to a permitted usc: 
D. Personal services, except when located in a 

ground floor building space that fronts directly 
onto First Street. Mnin Street or State Street: 

E. Private clubs, lodges. or fraternal organi 
zations located above the ground floor: 

F. Restauran ts. exduding dri ve-through ser
vices: 

G. Retail: and 
H. Uses which are determined by the city 

planner to be or the same general cha racter. (Ord. 
05-21)4 ~ 2 (part): Ord . 05-289 § 2 (purl): Ord. 
05-2RO * 7 (pa rt): Ord. 05-270 92: Ord . 04-268 ~ l ) 
(Ord . No. J(J-:\48. * 4. 4- U -201 0) 

14.48.040 Condi tional uses and structures 
(CI~S). 

l ' p()n the granting or a usc permit in accor
dance \\'i th t h~ provisions of Chapter 14.80 of thi~ 
title. the following. uses shall be permitted in the 
CRS District. except when they displace a retail 
business locnted in a ground ll oo r bui lding spacl: 
that front s directly onto First Street. Ma in Stree t 
nr State Street: 

,\ . An) new buildi ng that has an area f!reatt:r 
than :-.c,en thousand (7.000) gros:-. :-.quare feet. and 
an~ addition to an cxi:-.ting building ,,·hich \\~Htld 
result in the total huilding area exceeding sc,·cn 

14.4S.050 

thousa nd (7.000) gross squa re feet. including ad
ditions to buildings which presently exceed seven 
thousand (7.000) gross square feet in area; 

B. Cocktaillounges: 

C. Comme rcia l recrea ti on: 

D. Day ca re centers. except when located in a 
ground floor building space that fron ts diret:t ly 
onto First Street. Main Street or State Street: 

E. Hotels: 

f. Housing located above the gro und floo r: 
and 

G. Uses which arc determined by the plan
nin g commission to be or the same genera l cha r
acter. (Ord. 05-294 * 2 (part): Ord. 05-2&9 § 2 
(part): Ord. 05-280§ 7 (part): Ord. 05-270§ 3: Ord. 
04-268 § 3) 

(Ord. No. 2012-375,§6. 1-24-20 12) 

14.48.050 Rcc1uircd cmulitions (CRS). 

T he ld lowing co ndition~ sha ll be req uired or 
a ll uses in the CRS Distrit: t: 

t\. Any ground lloor ofli cc that is voluntar ily 
discontinued pursuant to Section 14.66.11 0 of this 
ti tle shall bl! cotm::rted to a conformi ng use. or 
receive a condi til>nal usc permit to maintain an 
oiTic.:~ a t that loc.:atit'll pursuam to Sect ion 
14.80.060(}1 ) or thi !> title. 

B. t\ 11 busi nc.:ssc.:s. !>Cn ·iccs. and processes shal l 
be conducted within a cnmpli:tcly enclosed struc
ture. except (i.) r parking and loaJing spaces. sa k or 
gasoline and nil at scr\'ice sta t ion~. incidental sale~ 
and display of plantntah.:riab and garden suppl ies 
occupying no mort' than one thousa nd fi,·e hu n
drl'd ( 1.500) squa re feet of extl'rior sales and dis
play a rea. outdoor c;tt ing areas operated inciden
ta l to permi tted catin!! and drinking scr\'ices. a nd 
i\S Ot hcrwisc all om:d ll pon the issua 11C.:C.: o r a II 
o utdoor di splay IK'rmil. F.xte rior storagc is prohi b
ited. 

C. No usc.: shall he permi tted and no process. 
equipmc111. t)r tllatc.:tiab ~hall be entploycd \\hich 
arc liHlnd by tlw rommi~:-.ion It) he 1>bjectionahlc 
h~ reason or od,>r. dusl. nni:-.l'. \ ihration. illumina-



14.48.050 

tion. glare, unsightliness or electrical disturbances 
which are manifested beyond the premises in which 
the permitted usc is located . 

D. No property owner, business owner and/or 
tenant sha ll permit or allow operation of a busi
ness which violates the required conditions of this 
chapter. including the following general criteria: 

I. Refuse collection. Every development. in
c! uding applications for tenan t improvements. shall 
be requ ired to provide suitable space fo r solid 
waste separat ion, collection, and storage ami shall 
provide sites fo r such tha t are located so as to 
l~1 ci litatc collec tion a net minimize any negative im
pact on persons occupying the development site. 
neighborin,!! properties, or public right s-of-way. 
Refuse collection areas are encouraged to be shared. 
centra lized. facilities whenever possible. 

2. Lighting. Lighting within any lo t that un

necessa rily illuminates nny other lot and/or sub
stantially interferes with the use or enjoyment or 
such other lot is prohibited. Lighting unnecessar
ily illuminates another lo t if: (i) it clearly exceeds 
the minimum illumination necessa ry to proYide 
for security of' pro pert) and the safety of person~ 
using such roads. dri\'eways. sidewalks. parking 
lots. and other common areas and faci lities. or (ii) 
if the illumination cou ld reasonably be uchiev~.:d in 
a ma nner that wou ld not substantia lly interfere 
wi th the usc or enjoyment of neighboring proper
tics. 

J. Air pollution. /\ ny usc that emits any "air 
con tuminant" as deli net.! by the Bay /\ rca a ir qua l
ity munagcmcnt d ist riel ~ha II com ply wi 1 h appl i
cublc state standards concerning air pollu tion. 

4. rvtailltCIH\nCl' t)f COilllllOn areas. impro\'C
ments. and faciliti~:s. Mainll.:nance of all <.:ommun 
areas, imprm cmcnt s. facilities. nnd public side
walk!'> adjacent to the subject property shall he 
requirt!d . In the ca-;e nf public sidewa lks. mainte
nance shall be limited tn keeping the sidewalk 
ckan and fret.· or dcbri.;. markings, and foot.! and 
drink ~lain~ by rnca ll !:. or ~weeping. cleaning\\ ith 
wuter a nd/nr stca m cleanin g. 

5. Odor'. n u"t.' rna~ generate an) odor that 
may be lt liHHI rc:rsn nahly t)bjcctionahk as deter-

mined by an appropriate agency such as the Santa 
Clara County health department and the Bay Area 
air qua lit y management district beyond the bound
ary occupied by the enterprise generating the odor. 

6. Noise. No person shall operate, or cause to 
be operated. any source of sound at any location 
within the city or allow the creation of any noise 
on propert y owned. leased , occupied or otherwise 
con i rolled by such pcn,on , which causes the noise 
level when measured on any o ther propert y either 
inco rporated or unincorpora ted, to exceed stan
dards as set forth in Chapter 6. 16 of the Los Altos 
Municipa l Code. 

In order to attenuate noise associated with 
commercia l deve lopmen t, wa ll s up to twelve (12) 
l'cet in height may be required at a commercial/ 
residential interrace. Other conditions may be ap
plied such as. but not limited to. mutning of exte
rior air conditioning facilities. (Ord. 05-294 § 2 
(part): Ord. 05-289 * 2 (part): Ord. 05-287 * 3: Ord. 
04 -268 * 2 (part): prior code* 10-2.1905) 

14.48.060 Front )'ani (CRS). 
With the exception or landscaping. all devel

opment in the CRS District must he built to the 
back or th~.· sidewalk . (Ord. 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 ~ 2 ( pn rt): Ord. 04-26R * 2 (part): prior code 
§ 10-2. 1907) 

1 4.4~.070 S ide y:mls (CI~S) . 

No side yarus ::.h al l be requi red. and none shall 
be allnwcd. except where the side property line or 
a site abut!:. a public pa rking plaza. the minimum 
width l)r tht.: side yard sha ll be two feet which shall 
be land~c;qx~d . A rt.·quired side ya rd may be used 
lo r parkin!! except l'or tht.• an.:a required to be 
landscaped . (Ord. 05-294 * 2 (part): Ord. 05-289 
* 2 (part): Ord. O-l-26l~ * :2 (part): prior code 
~ 10-2.190~) 

1 ~.48.0HO Rear ~ ard (CI~S) . 

:'-J(' rc.1r ~ard ~hall h~.· required c-.;cept as fol
Io"~ : 

,\ . \\'here the rear propn ty line or a si te abuts 
a publil' parkin!! pial<\. the minimum Jepth or the 
rear yard :-hal l he I\\\) fet.'l. which shall be land 
scapl'd . 



B. Where the rear property line of a site abuts 
an existing a lley, the minimum depth of the rear 
ya rd shall be ten (10) feet, of wh ich the rear two 
feet shall be landscaped . A required rear yard may 
be used lor parking, except for the a rea required to 
be landscaped . (Ord . 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 05-289 
§ 2 (part): Ord. 04-268 § 2 (part); prio r code 
§ I 0-2. 1909) 

14.48.090 Off-street parking (CRS). 

Pa rking fa<.:ilities shall be provided in accor
dance wi th C hapter 14.74 of this title. Jn addition, 
parking facilities shall : 

A. Reduce the visual impact of parking struc
tures and parking lots by locating them at the rear 
or interior port ions of building sites; 

B. Minimize the street frontage of the lot o r 
st ructure by placing its sho rtest horizontal edge 
a long the stree t; 

C. When parking structures must be loca ted 
at st reel frontage because other local ions are proven 
infeasible. the ground level frontage shall either be 
used fo r comme rcia l spnce o r sha ll provide a land
scaped area no t less than fi ve feet in width between 
the parking area and the public right-of-way: 

D. Not be accessed from State or Main Streets 
unless no o ther access is feasible, in which case the 
number of direct entrances to parking facilities 
from stree ts sha ll be kept to :1 minimum: 

t::.. Provide a landscaped butTer not less than 
live feet in width between a parking lot or struc
ture and street frontage or bui ldi ngs. Where the 
l a nd~caped strip adjoins a public street o r pedes
trian wa lk way. the la ndscaped strip may be re
quired to include a fence. wall, berm. or equ ivalent 
fea tu re; 

F Prov ide a minimum or interior landscap
ing. for uucntlosed parking facilities as follows: 
where the to ta l parking provided is located on one 
si te ami is rourteen thousa nd nine hundred ninet v
ninc ( 14.999) square feet o r less. live pcn:ent o r 
total parkin!! area; where the parking is fift een 
thousnnd ( I 5.000) through twent y-nine thousa nd 
nine hundred ni nety-nine (29.999)squarc feet. sen:n 
and tHlc-halr percent of to tal parking. an.:a : and 

45.\ 

14.48 . 11 0 

where the f~1cility is thirt y thousand (30,000) square 
feet o r greater, ten ( I 0) percent of total parking 
area ; 

Parkjng Area (in square Minimum Landscaping 
feet) (% of Parking Area) 

< 15,000 5 

15,000 - 29,999 7.5 

> 30,000 10 

G. Trees in reasonnble number shall be pro
vided; ground cover alone is not acceptable. Inte
rior landscaping sha ll be distributed throughout 
the paved area as evenly ns possible. Provision 
shaJI be made for a utomatically irrigating all 
plan ted area . A ll landscaping shall be protected 
with concrete curbs or o ther acceptable barriers. 
All landscapi ng shall be continuously mainta ined. 
(Ord. 08-320 § 3 (part); Ord . 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord . 04-268 § 2 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2. 1910) 

14.48.100 Common parking facilities (CRS). 

(1\s provided in Chapter 14.74 of this title.) 
(Ord. OH-320 § 3 (part); Ord . 05-294 § 2 (pa rt ): Ord. 
05-2g9 § 2 (part): Ord . 04-268 § 1 (part): prio r code 
§ 10-2. 1911) 

14.48. 110 Off-street loading and refuse 
rollcction (CRS). 

1\ . Where buildings arc served by alleys, a ll 
service-delivery entrances, loaJing docks, and re
l'usc collection facilitie;:s sha ll be located to be ac
cessed from the a lley. No londing area sha ll be 
loca ted at the street frontage or building facade. 

B. 1\ minimum of thirty- two (32) square feet 
o f covered refu se collect ion area shall be provided 
a nd shall not be located in any front o r street side 
yard. When: an alley ex ists. the refuse collection 
area shall be accessed from the alley. Refuse col
lection area :, sha ll be on site, but are encouraged to 

he shared. ccn trali i'.ed . facilities \\'hcnevcr possi · 
bk. 

( ·. On site· not served by an alley. sc n ·Kc 
areas shall hl· IPcatcd 10 the rear. side. or at a n 



14.48.1 10 

internal location where visibility from public streets, 
public parking plazas and neighboring properties 
will be minimized. 

D. Refuse collection areas shall be enclosed 
by a screen wall of durable material and planting 
as necessary to screen views from streets, public 
park ing plazas and neighboring properties. (Ord. 
08-320 § 3 (part); Ord. 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord. 04-268 § 2 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2. 1912) 

14.48.120 Height of s tructures (CRS). 
No structure shall exceed thirty (30) feet in 

height. The first story shall have a minimum inte
rior ceiling height of twelve ( I 2) feet to accommo
date retail use, and the floor level of the first story 
shall be no more than one foot above sidewa lk 
level. (Ord. 08-331 § I: Ord. 08-321 § 2: Ord. 
08-320 § 3 (part); Ord. 05-294 § 2 (pa rt): Ord . 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord. 04-268 § 2 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2. 1913) 
(Ord . No. 10-349, § 5, 4-27-20 10) 

14.48.130 Design control (CRS). 
A. No structure shall be built or altered in

cluding ex terior changes in color, materials, and 
signage in the CRS District except upon approva l 
of the city planner or as prescribed in Chapter 
14.78 or this title. 

B. Reduction of apparent size and bulk : 
I. As a general principle. building surfaces 

should be relieved with a change of wall plane that 
provides strong shadow and visua l interest. 

2. Every building over twenty-five (25) feet 
wide shall have its perceived height and bulk re
duced by dividing the build ing mass into sma ller
scale component s by: 

i. A change of· plane; 
ii. A projection or recess: 
ii i. Varying cornice or roof lines : 
iv. Providing at least one en tra nce for every 

twen ty-li ve (25) feet of bui lding frontage; or 
v. Other similar means. 
3. The proportions of building d ements. es· 

pecially those at ground level. shou ld be kept inti-

S11pp N<' 1·: 454 

mate and close to human size by using recesses, 
courtyards, entries, or outdoor spaces a long the 
perimeter of the building to defi ne the underlying 
twenty-five (25) foot Jot frontage. 

C. The primary access to the ground Ooor for 
all buildings shall be directly to the street or park
ing plazas, with the exception of arcade or interior 
courtyard spaces. 

D. Consideration should be given to the rela
tionship of the project and its location in the 
downtown to the implementation of goals and 
objections of the down town urban tlesign plan. 
Evaluation of design approval shall consider one 
or more of the foll owi ng factors: 

I. The project location as an entry, edge. or 
core si te: 

2. The ability to contribute to the creation of 
open space on-site or in Jesignated areas; 

3. Enhancement of the pedestrian environ
ment through the use of pathways. plantings. trees. 
paving, benches. outdoor di ning areas or other 
amenities; 

4. Building facade improvements includ ing. 
paint , signage. servi ce areas. windows anJ other 
features: 

5. On or olr-site improvement s: and /or 

6. Public or private landscape improvements. 

E. Opaque. reflective, or dark tinted glass 
should not be used on the ground floor elevation. 
Sixty (60) percent of the ground floor elevation 
should be transparent window surface. 

F. Courtyards should be partially visible fron 1 
the street or linked to the street by a clear ci rcula
tion element such as an open passage or covered 
arcade. 

G. Rooftop mechanical. venting. and/or ex
hausting equipment must be within the height 
limit and screened architecturally from publicvic'.-v. 
including views from adjacent buildings located at 
the same level. (Ord. 0~-320 ~ 3 ( ra rt ): Or d . 05-294 
~ 2 {part): Ord. 05-289 ~ 2 (part): amended du ring. 
2/06 supplement : Ord. 04-268 * ~ (pa rt): Ord. 
0 1-397** 10. II. 12: priorcodc* 10-2. 1914) 



14.48.140 Nonconforming usc regulations 
(CRS). 

(As provided in Chapter 14.66 of this title.) 
(Ord. 08-320 §~(part): Ord. 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Orcl . 04-268 § 2 (part); prior code 
§ 10-2.1915) 

14.48. 150 S igns (CRS). 
(As provided in Chapte r 1 1.04 of this code.) 

(Ord . 08-320 § 3 (part); Ord. 05-294 § 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord. 04-268 § 2 (part): Ord. 
01 -397 ~ 13: pri or code§ I 0-2.1916) 

14.48.160 Fences (CRS). 

(As provided in Chapter 14.72 or this title.) 
(Ord. 08-320 § 3 (part); Ord. 05-294§ 2 (part): Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord . 04-268 § 2 {part); prior code 
* 10-2.1917) 

14.48.170 Restora tion of nonconforming 
structures (CRS). 

(As provided in Chapter 14.66 of this title.) 
(Ord. 08-320 § 3 (part): Ore!. 05-294 § 2 (part) : Ord. 
05-289 § 2 (part): Ord. 04-268 § 2 (part): prior code 
§ 10-2.1918) 

14.48.180 Exceptions for public benefit (CRS). 

A. To implement the downtown design plan. 
minor exceptions from the provisions or this chap
ter may be granted in the context or the project's 
benefit relative to its location. Since these are not 
required by law. they arc to be allowed at the 
complete discretion or the city. provided the fol 
lowing findings are made: 

I . The benelits to the do\\'n town will be sig
n i fica 11 t: 

2. The benefits to the city derived from grant
ing the exception is an appropriate mitigation when 
considered aga inst the t:os t to the d~veloper: 

.1 . The project :tnd mitigation will resu lt in a 
public henefit to the down town: and 

4. The resultant project and mitigation arc 
consistent with the gcnernl plan and promote or 
accomplish objecti ves of the downto\\ n design 
plan 

14.48.180 

B. For the purposes or this chapter, such ex
cept ions may include, but arc not limited to, set 
hacks. height of structure, height or the fir~ t lloo r. 
on-si te parking, and o ther zoning regulations. 
"I Ieight of structure" sha ll on ly apply to building 
height exceptions that support the project's archi 
tectural integrity. 

C. For the purposes of this section. signili
cant public benefits identified in the downto\\'n 
design plan, include. but are not limited to, proj
ects that accomplish the fo llowing: 

I. Provide for additiona l public parking, be
yond minimum code req uirement project needs; 

2. Provide additional public ou tdoor plazas 
and gathering and eating spaces, visible from the 
public right-of-way. to enhance the ambiance or 
the downtown: 

3. Create prominent , recognizable, en try 
points into the downtown area: 

4. Preserve the historic cha racter of down
town by renovating existing historic buildings: 

5. Create strong pedestrian linkages to the 
Civic Center and residential areas adjacent to down
town; and 

6. Develop pedestrian walkways or "pasco" 
passage ways where they arc needed, to better link 
rear parking plazas to the businesses along State 
and Main Streets. (Ord. 08-320 s J (part): Ord. 
05-294 ~ 2 (part): Ord. 05-289 § 2 (part): Ord. 
04-268 * 2 (part): prior code§ I 0-2.19 19) 
{Ord. No. IO-J48, s 5. 4- IJ-20 10; Ord. No. 20 12-
:188, * I. 11 - IJ-20 12) 



ATTACHMENT C 

Final Report 

City of Los Altos Downtown Wide 

Traffic and Parking Impact Analysis 

Submitted to: 

Prepared by: 

DMJM HARRIS 1\ECOM 

1570 The A lameda, Suite 222 

San Jose, CA 95126 

September 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic nnd Parking Analysis 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ......................... .......... ............. ...................... .. .. .. .. ..................... ......... 1-1 
1.1 Study Area .................................................................. ....................... ........ ......... 1-1 
1.2 Phase One Study Resu lts ....................................... .... .. ................................... .. 1-3 

2.0 PROJECT CONDITIONS .................................................................................... ........... 2-1 
2.1 Trip and Parking Generation Rates ............. .... ................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment ................. .......... ............................................. 2-3 

3.0 TRAFFIC AND PARKING ANALYSIS ................... ........ ............................................. .. .. 3-1 
3.1 Intersection Analysis Methodology ............................................................. ... ..... 3-1 
3.2 Intersection Performance ..... .... ..... ...................... ................. ... .. ............... .. .. ...... 3-2 
3.3 Potential Mitigation Measures .............................. ................. ... .................. ...... 3-12 
3.4 Parking Analysis ...... .. ... ......................... ....... ... ............ ......................... .... ... ..... 3-14 

4.0 CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................... 4-1 

List of Figures 

Figure 1.1 
Figure 1.2 
Figure 2.1 
Figure 3.1 
Figure 3.2 
Figure 3.3 
Figure 3.4 
Figure 3.5 
Figure 3.6 
Figure 3.7 
Figure 3.8 

Study Area and Study Intersections ....................... ....... ............ ......... .......... ... 1-2 
Downtown Los Altos Land Use Plan ................................................. ........... ... 1-4 
Project Trip distribution ............ ... ....... ... ............ .................................. .. ........... 2-4 
Existing Intersection Lane Configuration ..... .. ......................... ........... .. ....... .. ... 3-3 
Existing Intersection Traffic Volumes .... ..................................................... .... . 3-4 
No-Build Intersection Traffic Volumes ........................................................ ..... 3-5 
Scenario 1 a Intersection Traffic Volumes ............................... .. .................. ..... 3-6 
Scenario 1b Intersection Traffic Volumes ........................................................ 3-7 
Scenario 2a Intersection Traffic Volumes ........ ............ ................... ................. 3-8 
Scenario 2b Intersection Traffic Volumes ......... ... ......................................... ... 3-9 
Downtown Parking Plan ......................................................................... ....... 3-15 

List of Tables 

Table 2.1 
Table 2.2 
Table 3.1 
Table 3.2 
Table 3.3 
Table 3.4 
Table 3.5 
Table 3.6 
Table 3.7 
Table 3.8 

DMJM H.:lrrts 

Intensification Scenarios ............................... ... ........................... .. .... ..... .......... 2-2 
Proposed Additional Office and Dwelling Units ............................................... 2-3 
Signalized Intersection Level of Service Definitions ........................................ 3-1 
Unsignalized Intersection Level of Service Definitions .................................... 3-2 
Performance of Studied Intersections ........................................................... 3-1 0 
Potential Mitigation Measures ................................................... .... ................ 3-13 
Number of Public Parking Spaces ......... .................................... ................ .. .. 3-14 
Average Parking Occupancy(%) .................................................................. 3-14 
Availability of Parking Spaces .................. ............... ...................................... 3-16 
Parking Demand for Proposed Intensification ............ ................................... 3-16 

i September 14. 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Los Altos City Council wished to study the impact of modifying the zoning regulations for 
three primary downtown commercial districts, namely the central downtown core Commercial 
Retail Sales district, the south triangle area Commercial Downtown district and the 
Commercial Service district at First Street. The City Downtown Zoning Committee 
recommended the following changes: 

Central Downtown Core Commercial Retail Sales distri ct 
• Eliminating the 100% FAR restriction 

South Triangle Commercial Downtown District 
• Increasing the allowable building envelope from two stories in height, to three stories 
• Eliminating the 80% FAR restriction 

Commerc ial Service District at First Street 
• Eliminating the 50% FAR restriction 
• Requiring retail businesses greater than 15,000 sq. ft. in size to remain retail 

A two phase approach to this study was proposed and accepted by the City. In the first 
phase, traffic count data at fifteen intersections and parking from the downtown parking lots 
and on-street parking areas were gathered to determine current traffic and parking conditions. 
The results of the first phase were submitted to the City in May 2007. The second phase 
looks at the impact of potential future development intensification as outlined above. After 
further discussion with the City of Los Altos, the original proposal was expanded to include a 
second scenario that examines the impact of having three-story developments in the entire 
downtown area (not just limited to South Triangle as in the original proposal). This second 
phase focuses on the effect on downtown parking caused by the proposal zoning changes. 
The findings of the second phase are presented in this report. 

1.1 Study Area 

The City of Los Altos downtown is essentially bounded by San Antonio Road, Foothill 
Expressway and Edith Street, forming a triangular area. Figure 1.1 shows the study area, 
including the intersections examined in this study. 

There are seven signalized intersections in the downtown area: 

• San Antonio Road I Edith Avenue I Main Street 
• San Antonio Road I First Street 
• San Antonio Road I Foothill Expressway 
• Main Street I Foothill Expressway 
• Main Street I First Street 
• Edith Avenue I Foothill Expressway 
• Edith Avenue I First Street 

1-1 September 14, 2007 



N 

A 

~ 
Vl 

g 
<t 
Vl 

9 

e 
0 

Signalized 
Intersection 

Unsignalized 
Intersection 

DM)M HARRIS .\[l0\1 

0 
a: 

HILLVIEW 

[ 
NE 

0 z 
g 
z 
~ 

AV 

PEPPER DR 

ST 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 1.1 
STUDY AREA AND STUDY INTERSECTIONS 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

In addition, there are eight unsignalized intersections in the downtown area which are 
considered important in this study: 

• San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive 
• San Antonio Road I Lyell Street 
• Main Street I Second Street 
• Main Street I Third Street 
• State Street I First Street 
• State Street I Second Street 
• State Street I Third Street 
• State Street I Fourth Street 

The land use plan for the downtown area is presented in Figure 1.2. The study area has been 
divided into zones, based on the different land uses. The central portion of the downtown is 
primarily retail business, surrounded by other commercial services, and offices located mainly 
north of the retail businesses. The commercial services include food and beverage outlets. 

1.2 Phase One Study Results 

All the signalized intersections in the study area operate at Level of Service (LOS) C or better 
under the current traffic conditions during both the Noon and PM peak hours. Six out of the 
eight unsignalized intersections perform at LOS C or better. San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive 
and San Antonio Road I Lyell Street operate at LOS F under the existing conditions. This is 
due to the high through traffic volume on San Antonio Road, resulting in a long waiting time for 
the side-street traffic. As determined in the Phase One study report, this can be mitigated by 
signalizing one or both of these intersections. Signalizing these two intersections would bring 
the level of service to A. All intersections in the study area operate within acceptable levels of 
service under today's traffic condition during Noon and PM peak hours. 

The parking survey conducted under Phase One of the study showed that the current parking 
supply in the downtown area meets the current demand. Peak parking demand occurs during 
the weekday lunch hour when both on-street and off-street parking exceeds 85% occupancy. 
Parking demand during weekend lunch hour is also close to 'full' occupancy. 

DMJMHnrds 1·3 September 14, 2007 



- R3-1 Multiple-Family (Zone 1) 

- OAD Office (Zone 3a/b) 

0 OAD/R3-1 Office/Multiple-Family (Zone 2) 

.. CD Downtown Commercial (Zone 4, Sa/b) 

0 CS Commercial Service (Zone Sa/b) 

0 CRS Commercial Retail Sales (Zone 6) 

- CRS/OAD Commercial Retail Sales/Office 

(Zone 7) 

DMJM HARRIS \[(.(l\1 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 1.2 
DOWNTOWN LOS ALTOS LAND USE PLAN 



City of Los Altos Downtow11-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

2.0 PROJECT CONDITIONS 

Based on the proposed changes to the Los Altos Downtown area as outlined in Section 1.0, 
four future project scenarios were proposed. Analysis was conducted to determine the traffic 
and parking impacts of each scenario. Full build-out of each scenario is assumed to be in 20 
years. 

The four scenarios are presented in Table 2.1. Briefly, in Scenarios 1 a and 1 b, all 
development in the downtown area will be build out to 2 stories. While most additional 
development will be a mixture of residential and offices, the 2nd story addition in Zone 6 will be 
100% office in Scenario 1 a and 100% residential in Scenario 1 b. Scenario 2 further expands 
the proposed intensification to build out of 3 stories in the downtown area. Similarly, in 
Scenario 2a, the additional development in Zones 6 and 7 will be 100% office whereas in 
Scenario 2b, the additional development in these two zones will be 100% residential. The 
corresponding additional office and dwelling units based on the scenarios are shown in Table 
2.2. 

Office units are calculated based on 1000 square feet of the Gross Floor Area (GFA) and 
residential units are based on dwelling units of 1200 square feet of the GF A. These are in line 
with the ITE trip and parking generation rates used for the study analysis. 

2.1 Trip and Parking Generation Rates 

Trip (ITE Trip Generation 7th ed, 2003) and parking (ITE Parking Generation 3rd Ed, 2004) 
generation rates used in this study analysis are as follow: 

Trip generation rates 

Zone 2 
Mid rise apartment (223) - Based on DU 

Peak Hour trips/unit Inbound (%) 
AM 0.3 31 
PM 0.39 58 

Zone 3- 8a/b 

Outbound(%) 
69 
42 

General office building (710)- Based on per 1000 s.f. of GFA 
Peak Hour trips/unit Inbound (%) Outbound (%) 

AM 1.55 0.88 0.12 
PM 1.49 0.17 0.83 

Zone 4 - 8a/b 
Low rise residential (221) - Based on occupied DU* 

AM 
PM 

Peak Hour trips/unit 
0.46 
0.58 

•assumed 100% occupied 

DMJM H.'lrris 

Inbound(%) 
0.21 
0.65 

2·1 

Outbound (%) 
0.79 
0.35 

September 14, 2007 



City of l..os 4/tos &&.\lol1to..,.,..lo1icte 7n111ic atJct Parl{itJg 4tJa/ysis 
------------------------------------------------~ 

Table 2.1 Intensification Scenarios 

Zone# Existing Propos e d S cenario 1a Proposed Scenario 1 b Proposed Scenario 2a Proposed Scen:Hio 2b 

1 R3-1 Multo-Fem1ly Multi-family 
developments No change to existing No change to existing No change to existing No change to existong 
(Residential) 

2 OAO I R3-1 Otfoce I -
Mult1 Fam1ly 

Mostly offices with 
Redeveloped to 1 00% Redeveloped to 100% residential, 3 some residential No change to existing No change to ex1st1ng 

developments residential , 3-story story 

3alb OADOffice Up to 3'" story addition will be a Up to 3'"story additoon w1ll be a Offices No change to existing No change to existing 
100% office 100% office 

4 CD Commercial 
Downtown Eliminate 80% FAR regulation. Eliminate 80% FAR regulation. Eliminate 80% FAR regulation. Eliminate 80% FAR regulation. Up 

USPS Post Office 2"" story addition will be a 2"" story add•llon will be a Up to 3'" story addition will be a to 3'" story addition w111 be a 
mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80o/o) and mixture of office (80%) and 
residential (20%} residential (20%) residential (20%) residential (20%) 

-----salt) cs Commercial 
Service Eliminate 50% FAR restriction. Eliminate 50% FAR restriction. Eliminate 50°.1¢ FAR restriction. Eliminate 50% FAR restriction . 

However, to remain as retail if However, to rema1n as retail if However, to remain as retail if However, to remain as retail If area 
area > 15. OOOs. f . area > 15,000s.f. area> 15,000s.f. > 15,000s.f. 

2"" story addition w ill be a 2"" story addition will be a Up to 3'" story addition will be a Up to 3'" story addition will be a 
Mostly 1 story mixture of office and residential 

mixture of office and 
mixture of office and residential mixture of office and residential 

commercial resident•al -
Sa - Jo<vo office , 70°/o Sa - 30% office, 70% Sa - 30% office, 70% Sa- 30% office, 70% residential 
residential residential residential 

5b - 80% office. 20% 5b- 80% office. 20% 5b- 80% office, 20% 5b- 80% office, 20% res1dent1al 
residential res1dential residential ---
1 hotel proposed within Sa 1 hotel proposed within Sa 1 hotel proposed within Sa 1 hotel proposed Within Sa 

6 CRS Commercial Eliminate 100% FAR Eliminate 100% FAR 
Retail Sales 1•• floor are all 

Eliminate 100% FAR regulation. 
regulat1on . regulation. 

Eliminate 100% FAR regulation. 

----
commeretal I retail 2nd story addition will be 1 00% 2'"' story add1t1on will be 100% Up to 3'" story addition will be Up to 3'" story add11J0n Will be 

office restdenttal 100% office 100% restdent1al - 7 CRS lOAD Ellm•nate 100% FAR 
Commerc1al Reta11 regulation. 

Ehmtnate 100% FAR regulat•on. 

Sales/Office As#6 above No change to eXlsting No change to existing 
Up to 3'0 story addition will be Up to 3'" story add•tJon Will be 
100% office 100% res•dentlal - Sa CD Commerc1al 

Downtown Also known as the 
Eliminate 80% FAR regulat1on. Ehm1nate 80% FAR regulation. Eliminate 80% FAR regulation . Ehm1nate 80% FAR regulation . Up 

South Tnangle - mamly Up to 3"' story addition will be a Up to 3'" story addition will be Up to 3"' story addition will be a to 3'" story add1t1on w111 be a 

commercial and offices mixture of office (80%) and a mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%) and 
residential (20%} residential (20%} residential (20%) residential (20%) 

8b' CD Commercial 
Eliminate 80% FAR regulation . Eliminate 80% FAR regulation. Eliminate 80% FAR regulation . Eliminate 80% FAR regulation . Up Downtown 

As#8a above 2"d story addition will be a 2"" story addition will be a Up to 3"' story addition will be a to 3'0 story addition will be a 
mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%) and mixture of office (80%} and 
residential (20%) residential (20%) residential (20%) residential (20%) 

• Zone 8b includes parcels along both sides of First Street 
To note that properties are allowed to develop up to property line and historical buildings will not be redevelope 

0/'vJJ/I;f /oianis <-< Se/J~er 14. <007 



City of Los Altos Dow11town-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

Parking generation rates 

Zone 2, 4 - 8alb 
Low I mid rise Apartment (221) 
peak period = 12-5am 
Average peak period parking demand = 
Average off-peak period parking demand*= 

Zone 3- 8alb 
Office bldg (701) 

2 veh I DU 
0.2 veh I DU 

peak period = 9am-12pm, 2-4pm 
Average peak period parking demand= 2.84 
Average off-peak period parking demand* = 0.284 

veh I 1000sf of GFA 
veh I 1 OOOsf of GFA 

*Off peak parking demand is assumed to be 10% of peak hour parking. 

Table 2.2 Proposed Additional Office and Dwelling Units 

Scenario 1a 1b 2a 

Zones 
Office Residential Office Residential Office Residential Office 

(1 000 s.f.) (DU) (1 000 s.f.) (DU) (1000 s.f.) (DU) (1000 s.f.) 

2 . . . . . 222 . 
3a/b . . . . 124 . 124 
4 57 12 57 12 91 19 91 
Sa 106 37 106 37 200 71 200 
5b 284 59 284 59 529 110 529 
6 635 . . 529 1366 . . 

7 . . . . 126 . . 
- -

Sa 553 115 553 115 553 115 553 
8b 33 7 33 7 140 29 140 

Total 1667 230 1032 759 3005 345 1512 

2b 

Residential 
(DU) 

222 
. 

19 
71 
1w-
1139 
105 
115 
29 

1589 

In addition, a hotel has been proposed in Zone 5. Relevant hotel trip generation information 
was extracted from the traffic analysis report for 'Downtown Los Altos Hotel Project' (Hexagon 
Transportation Consultants, Inc, February 2007) for used in this study. As the hotel is 
expected to provide its own private off-street parking, it will not be considered in this project's 
parking analysis. 

2.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment 

Trips generated by each zone under the different scenarios were distributed according to the 
percentage presented in Figure 2.1. The percentages were estimated based on the local 
knowledge of the existing travel pattern surrounding the study area. They were then assigned 
to each of the 15 intersections within the study area. Performance of these intersections will 
be discussed in detail in the next chapter of this report. 

DMJMHarris 2 -3 September 14, 2007 



N 

A e 
0 

Signalized 
Intersection 

U nsig nalized 
Intersection 

DMJM HARRIS \fCO~ 

Cl 
a: 

vi 

30o/o 

t 

HILLVIEW 

AV 

PEPPER DR 

ST 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 2.1 
PROJECT TRIP DISTRIBUTION 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

3.0 TRAFFIC AND PARKING ANALYSIS 

This chapter of the report looks at the impact of the proposed development intensification on 
traffic and parking conditions within the study area. Traffic and parking information obtained 
from Phase One of the study and traffic count information from 'Downtown Los Altos Hotel 
Project' (Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc, February 2007), have been used. 

Traffic conditions for the four proposed scenarios are being compared to the 'No Build' 
scenario of the future. The background growth rate used for this study is 1% for the first 10 
years and 0.5% for the next 10 years, a total of 20 years for full build-out. Any adverse 
impacts are highlighted and potential mitigation measures are discussed. 

Public parking in the downtown area required for the different intensification scenarios have 
been determined and compared to the current supply. Any changes in the public parking 
demand are discussed and adverse impacts highlighted. 

3.1 Intersection Analysis Methodology 

Level of seNice (LOS) is both a quantitative and qualitative description of an intersection's 
operations, ranging from LOS A, or free-flow conditions, to LOS F, or highly congested 
conditions. The level of seNice method specified by the Congestion Management Program 
(CMP) evaluates an intersection's operation based on the average stopped vehicular delay. 
The average delay is calculated using TRAFFIX software and is then correlated to a level of 
seNice. SeNice definitions are listed in Table 3.1. The CMP has established LOS E as the 
minimum acceptable level of seNice. 

Table 3.1 Signalized Intersection Level of Service Definitions 
Level of Description Average Delay 
Service (seconds/vehicle) 

A Operations with very low delay occurring with favorable progression <10.0 and/or short cycle length. 
B+ Operations with low delay occurring with good progression and/or short 10.1to12.0 
B 12.1 to 18.0 
8- cycle lengths. 18.1 to 20.0 
C+ Operations with average delays resulting from fair progression and/or 20.1 to 23.0 
c 23.1 to 32.0 
C- longer cycle lengths. Individual cycle failures begin to appear. 32.1 to 35.0 
D+ Operations with longer delays due to a combination of unfavorable 35.1 to 39.0 
D progression, long cycle lengths, or high volume-to-capacity ratios. 39.1 to51 .0 
D- Many vehicles stop and individual cycle fai lures are noticeable. 51 .1 to55.0 
E+ Operations with high delays values indicating poor progression, long 55.1 to 60.0 
E cycle lengths, and high volume-to-capacity ratios. Individual cycle 60.1 to 75.0 
E- failures are frequent occurrences. 75.1 to 80.0 

F Operation with delays unacceptable to most drivers occurring due to > 80 over saturation, poor progression, or very long cycle lengths. 

Source: 2000 Highway Capac1ty Manual, Transportation Research Board 

There is no specific methodology for analyzing unsignalized intersections in the CMP. For this 
report, the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM 2000) methodology for unsignalized intersection, 
supported by TRAFFIX software, is used for the unsignalized intersection LOS calculation. 
Table 3.2 lists the thresholds for different LOS. 

DMJMH.uns 3 · 1 September 14, 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic tmd Parking Analysis 

Table 3.2 Unsignalized Intersect ion Level of Service Defin itions 

Level of 
Description 

Average Control Delay 
Service (seconds/vehicle) 

A Little or no delay delay s 10.0 
B Short traffic delays 10.0 < delay s 15.0 
c Average traffic delays 15.0 < delay s 25.0 
D Long traffic delays 25.0 < delay s 35.0 
E Very long traffic delays 35.0 < delay s 50.0 

Extreme traffic delays with intersection capacity 
F exceeded delay > 50.0 

Source: HCM 2000. 

LOS rating for unsignalized intersection is based on the weighted average control delay 
expressed in seconds per vehicle for all approaches. Control delay includes initial 
deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped delay and final acceleration. At two-way or 
side-street controlled intersections, LOS is calculated for each controlled movement, not for 
the intersection as a whole. For approaches with a single lane, the control delay is computed 
as the average of all movements in that lane. The threshold values for unsignalized 
intersections are different than the threshold for signalized intersections due to different driver 
expectations of level of performance. Higher delay for the same LOS is acceptable at a 
signalized intersection as a signalized intersection is expected to serve larger traffic volumes. 

In addition, the project is considered to have adverse impact on a signalized intersection in the 
City of Los Altos if: 

1. The level of service at the intersection degrades from an acceptable LOS D or 
better under baseline conditions to an unacceptable LOS E or F under project 
conditions, or 

2. The level of service at the intersection is at an unacceptable LOS E or F under 
baseline conditions and the addition of project trips causes both the critical
movement delay at the intersection to increase by four (4) or more seconds and 
the volume I capacity (V/C) ratio to increase by 0.01 or more. 

3.2 Intersection Performance 

This section examines the performance of the studied intersections. The current lane 
configuration of the 15 intersections are presented in Figure 3.1. Existing AM and PM peak 
hour traffic volume are shown in Figure 3.2. As discussed with the City of Los Altos, AM peak 
hours traffic volumes were based on information from 'Downtown Los Altos Hotel Project' 
(Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc, February 2007) while PM peak hour volumes were 
collected during Phase One of this study. 

Traffic volumes for the future 'No-Build' scenario are shown in Figure 3.3, followed by the four 
project scenarios in Figure 3.4 to Figure 3.7. It is assumed that the lane configuration for 
these intersections remains unchanged in the future. A summary of TRAFFIX results for all 
15 intersections is tabulated in Table 3-3. Detailed information is attached in Appendix A - E. 

DMJM Harris 3·2 September 14, 2007 



1 

WEdith Av 
+'H 

~~ ~tt 
.,, ~ 

,'t-:.,.~ 

5 .;; 

" U! 

+ +'~ 
Mil!OSt 

~ ~~ T 

9 ~ 
g 
~ 

~ <I 

1~~ + 
Lye!I St 

+ ~tt. 
.. 

13 

• + ... 5tateSt ... 
+ + 

2 3 

1~~ + Flf~l St I'\ (l.lt.'SMAv 

~ ~tt. T 

6 7 
~ 
.ll 
:z 
~ t 

~H~ 
~ .. 

f"\ E<bthAv 

II' 
~ ~tt~ ... 
~ 

10 11 

• + ... 
M.\inSt ... 

+ + 

14 " '0 
15 

~ 

+ + ... St.n~St ... 
+ + 

DMJM HARRIS !\l lO'vl 

4 

+' ~~ 
-t 

~H~ 
..--.. 

MaioS1 

~~ 
8wkf!Ad 

~tt~ ~~ .4 
~ 

~ 
<1* 

' 
8 

~ 
~ 2 

g 
~ <I 

.It- 1~~ j ~~ + .. 
EdithAv ~pper Or 

Whill'ltySt 

~ ~~ + ~tt. T 
.. 

12 .;; .;; 
~ 

~ E 

<I 

+ + + + ... Ma.nSt ... 
St~ltSt ----... ... 

+ + + + .. 

.;; 
~ 

~ 

+ + 
~ Traffic Signal 

... State St .. Stop Sign ... 
+ + 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.1 
EXISTING INTERSECTION LANE CONFIGURATION 



ll 
1 • g 

N ;;, ~ 
Vl 0 j 
~ ::::. ~ 

+-' 
WEOott'IAv + 

(32~ (54) -,. '.} "'l t 
~~ ~!> ~ 

~t \!:-..:::~' =~ 

s .,; 

~ ~= 
~ 

'L 35(30) __ .,.. 
+- 84( 172) ;:::" \0~ 

"'"'"' -r 26(36) 
.J ·~ M4!t15t 

"'l t~ 90(111) J 
159(167) -

_ ........ -- ..... CON -
49(91) " 

__ ,... .,.,....,. 
..... o 

9 
~ 

~ 
'N ~ 

'L ;;, g; -l (24) 
c::::. ! +- (2) 

.J+~ 
-r (2) 

ly~!ISl 

{12)_,. "'l t (' 
(8)- NCON 

"'"'-- ~ -(76)-,. 

13 

"' 'P 'L ;n:=-j (17) 

=-~~ +- (75) 

.J ·~ 
-r (39) 

Stat•St 

(18)_;1 "'l t ,.. 
(111>- i:i\OOV\ 
(13)-,. 

!!l~ ~ 

' "''~~''...,_ , 

2 a;-_ 
... Vl 

'L 219(136) -O '<t "' --:::.f;;li\ +- 126(104) oo ---o -

~.~ 
-r 34(0) 

f•t~t St (U\!).t,\AV 

11(12)_;1 ~tr" 
70(168)-

......... -
o~:! 

43(179)-,. ~ co ~ 
O t'"l -..... 

6 

;;;- ~ f 
0\ ~ ~ :s 'L 262(140) 

~ ;:: ;;:! +- 178(223) 

-"' -r 74(135) 
.J + ~ 

td11t'1Av 

25(28) _;1 "'ltr" 
266(223)- :=' ~\C) 

~;e 107(134)-,. t.n(i)QO 
- oooo 

"' 

10 
.:; 

§ 'L 
C0\0- ~ (25) 
$~; +- (1 49) 

.J + ~ -r (21) 

MlllnSt 

(SO) _;I "'ltr" 
(168)- ~~&) 

--!::!. 
(72) ... 

14 "' " ~ 'L «;;;;_ (21) 

=-~£'! +- (90) 

.J ·~ 
-r (18) 

~·-'fSt 

(22)_;1 "'lt ,.. 
(155)- s=N 

(22) .. 
!::!~~ 

DMJM HARRIS \I C 0\1 

ll 
~ 3 co • 4 

"' 5 
..... _ 

~ 'L 87(101) == ~ 
_,..__ 
..... .,. ..... 

~~ j .::.Nc ! +- 82(119) 
"'"'"' ~ -"'"' .J 

-r 64(154) 

~ ·~ V;: 
~oU!nS1 

7 

11 

IS 

1: t aur,t Ad 

31(16)_;1 l.!ot ~ 
' 0'.9. 

..._ 
'.- r.>,.> 139(62)- ... ''" '' .,.. .,._ 

..>q,. ~ 59(12)-,. 
v; r:::.::.. 

, ~ "' "'"' -"' --
~~ 

.:; 8 
~ 

,.., _ & _-;:;; ~ 
"'" - 'L 28(32) ~;;;;, ~ 'L (24) --o 
M::.C. +- 272(26 1) =-=-~ l +- (8) 00.00 
-co- -r 18(43) -r (3) 

.J + ~ .J+~ 
f:dtthAv Pt:pOtr(k 

"'l t ,.. 
Wl'ltt~'~t)'St 

"'lt 130( 102) _;1 {38)_,. (' 
231(382)- N ~~ (12) - r:::-rn;o ..., __ 

-@~ 82 ( liS) -,. -V'IO (70)1! - ,..,.,. 
"' 00 

12 .1( v; 

~ 
'L 0\-

:£ 
'L 41(68) 

N~V\ 
(6) _ .,. ..... 

C!.C!. :::. +- (148) "'"'"' +- 17(11) ~~ ~ 
.J ·~ 

-r (8) 
.J ·~ 

-r 38(49) 

M.l1n ~1 Sl.iU!SI --- -
(29)_;1 ~t~ 3(11)_;1 "'ltr" 

(1 95)- E~i 5(22) - 0\00~ 
'<tO VI 
~ N -

(35)-,. 15 (20h. - ~N 
~~v 

.:; 

j 
'L 5'-\0 ( 10) 

-.::.=.. +- (100) 

.J + ~ -r (12) 

SwtSJ 

(6)_;1 "'lt ,.. 
(157)- ~as: 

(3)-,. XX (XX) =AM (PM) 
peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.2 
EXISTING INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



1 

$ (0 

"' 0 -:'!. :::. 

._] + W EdithAv 

"U (62) ... '.1 ~ t 
ROO 

,'>' 0""" ~~ 00\ 
~t::. ~ ~'): 

5 .:;; 

g~O\ 
~ 

IL 40(341 
!::.=.~ 

- 97(199) "'"'" Vl 10 N -r 30(41) 
aJ + l:. 

M<l1nS1 

~t~ 1 04(128,..,. 
184(193)-+ <teo"' 

ffi-d~ 56(105) ... 0\~tl'\ -

9 ~ • 2 - ~ IL .... c 
-\0-.e (27) CON~"" 

e.::.~ - (2) 

aJ +l:. 
-r (2) 

lyiP!ISt 

(14)_}1 ~t (' 
(9)-+ 

-o-~ 
oo<t 
=-~=-(88) ... 

13 
,;; 

g ~ 
R0\0 

~ -
(19) 

=-~s. (87) 

aJ+l:. 
-r (45) 

S\<!~tftSt 

(21 )_}1 ~ t (' 
(128)-+ ORN 

:!.~~ 
(15) ... 

li 
2 $~ • 

-ex) & 
- N 10 ~ IL 254(1571 ... --::.OM ~ - 146(120) -o m 
~r---

oA -r 39(0) 
aJ+l:. 

flr~t St CuestaAv 

~t~ 12(14)_}1 
81(195)-+ ;:!;(!;:e _,._, _ 
50(207) ... q:r::::q-

"'"' -ex) 

6 

- ~ 00 ~ w 1.1'\...., = IL 304(162) 
~~~ ~ 

- 206(259) - "' 0 of "'-- -r 86(156) 
aJ + l:. 

EdhhAv 

~ t 29(35)_}1 (' 
309(259)-+ NOM 

CX) CON 

124(155) ... ~<t-
,.....;::::~ 
-'<to --

10 

"' ~ IL <1\~Ci\ -* (29) 

!:0.~~ - (173) 

aJ + l:. -r (24) 

M<unSt 

(58) _jl ~t (' 
(195)-+ Rq:"~ 

~~~ 
(83) ... 

14 ;; 

~ IL 
-;::"$0 (24) 

c:!e:::. - (104) 

aJ+l:. 
r (21) 

Sl.lteSt 

(25)_}1 ~trr 
(180)-+ M~ln 

!:::!.t:!£::! 
(25) ... 

DMJM HARRIS A.rCOM 

a; d! 
4 l' 3 ·~ ~ ~ "' "'~ -~ ~ - -CX) j:: ~~g;~;) ~~ "'-"' ~ .:::.~.:::. 0\0 "'"'-"'~ ~ "'"'"' 

~~ 
aJ t l:. 

-r 97(178) 

M.tinSt 

t BurlteRd 

36(18)_}1 ~ t, ~ '\ ~'o 
<»a :r~~ 161(72)-+ Nvoo 

7 

11 

15 

IOVlM ---9:>~ 68(14) ... "'""-"'"'"' '\?. ~ M<t - ~ ,~, 

.:;; 8 
~ 

N'- & ·~ ... "'- IL 35(371 _Ci\ ~ IL (27) 
~ "'"' N.=.C! - 315(303) 

<to-
~ - (9) ~"'~ 

¢NO 

"'"'- -r 21(50) 
cc~ -r (3) 

aJ +l:. aJ + l:. 
Edilh Av Peppe<01 

~t~ 
WhilneySt 

~ t 150(1 18) _}1 (44)_}1 (' 
268(443)-+ "'"'- (14)-+ OORM .,., ....... - .... .,., 
95(127) ... ::.:=-;:o (81) ... c-

10 ...... 

"' 

12 .:;; .:;; 

~ ~ 
IL Ci\ 

IL 47179) CX)~ 

li\RR (7) - N 10 
.!:::!.!::!..:::. (17 1) 

o--o 
- 19(12) - mN-

-010 

-r (9) 

__ ,.. 
-r 44(56) 

aJ + l:. aJ +l:. 
Molin Sl S!llteSt ----

(33)_}1 ~tr' 3(12) _}1 ~ t (' 
(226)-+ ~\Ow 5(25)-+ 

\0-;::-N 
V><t'() 

- ~- -N-
(40) ... 17(23) ... r-.-CX) ..., ........ ..,. 

,;; 

~ 
of IL 

V\_(0 (11) 

--- -( 116) 

aJ +l:. 
r (14) 

Sta.u~St 

(7) _}1 ~t (' 
(182)-+ ~6§ 

(3) ... XX (XX) = AM (PM) 
peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.3 
NO-BUILD INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



I 
1 9 

fi co 
~ ~ \0 j \0 ,.. 
~ :::. "' 

._! 
w (dJthlw 

~ 

(f~ (80) .. "'11 ,J~ -"' .... ... ,...,_ 
;-'t- ~~ e!.=.. ..... ~ 

5 :I 

-co ~ 
f;ON - 'L 57(54) NN'() -;oc +- 125(374) -MOO co- .... -r 75(89) 

.J ~ ~ 
M.tiflSt 

234(168~ ""t t r" 
377(231 t-+ ~;:::;;; 

<ONM 
165(130h. N M-

~~8 
- N-

9 ~ 

I 
~ 

'L g§_j (27) 
"'- (2) .::.,::.~ +-

.J ~ ~ 
-r (2) 

lytll51 

(270) _}1 "'lt r" 
(9)- "' --..,...,. ... 

=-~=-(322)""\ 

13 
:1 
! 'L 0:::- ;o j (19) 

~!:::.~ +- (122) 

.J ~~ 
-r (52) 

SU!eSt 

!2S)..JI ""t t r" 
(148t-+ ::-~;;;-

~t:.~ 
(22)""\ 

· · ~·· . ..:-....... 

2 ;o_ 
-co co 

'L 262(1 57) "'"'"' "'--p;-;:::;;; +- 146(130) 0 co"' _,.... _ -r 39(0) 
~~~ 

r~~•St (vn1•Av 

40(105)__,. ""tt r" 
86(195)- ~~§' 
101(471h. .- s. ';; 

-"' "'"' "'"" ""-

6 

o- ~ ,.,o .ll 
o"' ~ 'L 368(504) ~~~ .2 +- 271(259) - ~ co 

"' "' .... -r 89(170) 
.J ~~ 

Edi11<1Av 

""ttr" 29(35)__,. 

309(259)- N~\0 
co .... "' 
~!:::.:=. 124(155) .. ""'" ~o-,.. -

10 
.;.; 

1 'L (30) \ON\DJi 
(3 1 1) ~!:::.~ +-

.J ~ ~ 
r (49) 

Matn~l 

(64) _}1 ""t t r" 
(279)- R0\0 

s~~ 
(84)""\ 

14 "' " E 'L - (25) 
- ~ --- ..... +- (113) 
~~!:;. 

.J~~ 
r (46) 

Sc.c.tSl 

(25)_}1 ""ttr" 
(203)- \O~R 

~!:20 
(25) .. 

DMJM HARRIS \r(O'vl 

6' i t 3 z 4 ;o_ co ! 0 "'\0 _,.. 
~ - ~"' ~ 'L 149(374) "'- U'\- N "'-_,.... j :::.0\N .2 +- 92(138) "'- Nco..-

"' ... "' r 159(478> 

;~-.$' 
.J ~~ 

M.lonSl 

7 

11 

IS 

/. ,t 8~111Rd :D. 
36(18)_}1 ""ttr" .... /9.' 161(72)-+ N 0\ 0 '(),...."' 

If.>.~ 68(14)""\ M !!!.!::! 

'~/. ~ '() ....... 
"' " ~ ~..,. ~, 

~ 

.;.; 8 
~ 

~ ~ 
N -

"""' - 'L 35(37) -0 ~ 'L (27) 
~28 +- 352(499) 

or-..- ~ +- (9) ;::;8::: OONO 

-r 59(60) :::::.e r !3> 
.J ~ ~ .J ~~ 

EdllhA~ l'<!pp«IH 

""ttr" 
W1"11tneySt 

""ttr" 150(118)_}1 (185) ...1 
481(490)- 'i' Vi' \0 (14) - ~~;;, ~ ............ 
262(166h. ""-- (315) .. -~~ - -o-g: .... "' -

12 

" "' " ~ 6' .! 
'L (8) 0- 'L 62(105) 

!g~ 
_ ... -
--co +- (253) "'"'- +- 22(15) -o..,. 

-r (26) N "'" -r 56(119) 
.J ~~ .J ~ ~ 

M.~on \1 StaleSt ----
(4 ,,..JI "'ltr" 4(13) _}1 ""t t r" 

(320) -
o-0\ 

7(27) - ;:;:-- 0\ro !:::.~~ co "' " (63)""\ 33(40) .. 
- ,., _ 
0 -<O 
" 00 ~ .,..,_ 

"' 

;;; 
~ 

1 'L (1 4) 
N-r;;-
~=~ +- (128) 

.J ~ ~ 
-r (14) 

StattSt 

(8) ...1 "'lt r" 
(234)-

,., __ 
=-~~ 

(4)""\ XX (XX) =AM (PM) 
peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.4 
SCENARIO 1a INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



5 

9 

13 

166(170r-" 
249(241 )-
157(130l<e 

~ 

--"' 
J 
~ 

:S~=l 
.=.::.!:!!. 

..J+la 

(257t-" 
(9) -
(2S4n. 

0( 

--~ l 
gg~ l 

..J + la 

(27)_,. 

(149>-
(16l<e 

r, , 'II , ,1...., ~· 

It_ 40(4 1) 
+- 116(259) 
r 71(551 

It_ (27} 
+- (2) 

r (2) 

lyelfSl 

~t r" 
!~; 

It_ (19) 
+- (95) 

r (46) 

St•!tSI 

"l t r" 
~~v-
--!!:'!. 

6 

28(104) _,. 
86(195)-
108(403)l! 

~ ~ 

It_ 254(157) 
+- 154(130) 
r 39(01 

~ \0 .: 
0 ~ ~ ~ It_ 380(403) 
~ ~ ~ £ +- 206(259) 
"'"'"' r 89(170l 

..J+la 

29(351-" 
309(259)-
124(155)<e 

7 

150(118)_,. 
424(493)-
205 (169l'"'l. 

It_ 35(37) 
+- 357(45 1) 
r 59(59) 

fdtthAv 

DMJM HARRIS \[C 0\1 

! 
~ It_ 160(272) 
£ +- 92(138) 

lur...•Rd 
36(18)_,. 

8 

161(72)-
68(14l<e 

wt-Jl"~.,-St 

(185) ...} 
(14) 
(237) ... 

r 166(410l 

..,..nSt 

10 11 0( 12 .;; 

14 

.;; ___ ] 
It_ (31} 

;~~V\ +- (223) 

._) + la 
r (29) 

M,llnSl 

(65) _,. ~t r" 
(277)- ~~~ 
(85l <e 

.;; IS 
1! 
~ It_ -"'-

(26) 

~~= +- (107) 

..J+ la 
r (27) 

SUteSI 

(25) _,. ~ t r" 
(196)- --N 

""'"' (25) .. !::!~-

" ~ - ~ 
It_ o-~ 

It_ 64(85) OM&; (9) "'"' -"'"' C!!:'.C +- (200) ;;;LnO\ +- 22(15} _,... ~ 

r (13} ~ ~"' r 62166> 
._) + la ._) + la 

M,,!nSt SweSt ----
(43)-" ~t ~ 4(13)-" ~ l r" 
(30<\j+ M ;::;M 7(27) - ~ ~= ~~~ "'"' (49)<e 33(40)<e 0 ~r:r 

..... """' "' 

~ 

1 It_ 
-o~s 

(IS) 

:::.::.a. +- (129) 

..J +la 
r (14) 

Sl~~tfSI 

(9) _,. "l t r" 
(200r+ EO§ 
(5) ... 

XX (xx) = AM (PM) 
peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.5 
SCENARIO 1 b INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



i 
1 v 

;:;< fi ;o ~ 
"' "' ~ 

N ~ !:. 
"' 

._) 
W £dtthAw + 

·~~ (87) ...._ '} ~1 
-"' ,co :'l, ~~ 

~'+ \!?~<f !::!.=:. 

5 VI 

-;::: ~ 
~"'- 'L 68(67) 
-~~ - 144(479) - "- N -o--o r •os<l24J 
~ + ~ 

M.ltnSt 

339(19l rJI ~ t ~ 
489(256)-+ V\0::: "' .... \() 

230(146h. "'"'-co;;;~ 

"'"'"' - N-

> 

9 .. 
- ~ ;;, (i\ _~ 

'L 2~~l (27) - (2) 

~·~ 
r (2) 

Lyell St 

cssoY' ~ t ~ 
(9) - ;reo;; ,.....,_ 

=::.e-(376he 

13 
"' 

;::: ;;; (i) 1 'L (23) ~~~ - (157) 

~ + ~ r (58) 

SlateSt 

(30)--" ~ t ~ 
(165)-+ NM-
(28)~ 

!!:.e; 

. ••J·.-...· 

2 0-
-"' a) 

'L 254(1 51) a) a)\() ..,. ~ ~ 
v;;:::;;; 

- 154(130) "' ~ "' -co-
~ ·~ 

r 39!0l 

r.t~t St (uMUAv 

38( 1 52)-" ~t~ 
86(195)- ~;~ 
157(664J<. N~~ -,...-

"'"'"' - 11'1 '()-

6 

0~ i 
8" ~ 'L 410(707) 0!::..!!:. :s 

~~ 8 ~ - 206(259) 
()\'() ..... r 9S!161l 
~ + ~ 

tct.lhA., 

~ t ~ 29(35) _}1 
309(259)- Nlntn 

"'"'"' q:'~::;. 124(155)'""'\j 
""'0 -m-e 

N-

10 
.;; 0\ __ g 

'L 0 1.1'1 N '-' (31) ::::.~!!1"' - (403) 

~ + ~ r (66) 

M;\II"'SI 

(70) _JI ~ t ~ 
(335)- ;;:-\0-v\ 

!:::::.~~ 
(91) ~ 

14 " !' 
~ 'L NOV\ (29) 

C.t::.!::! - (140) 

~ + ~ r (63) 

~·-.lt'$1 

(27) _JI ~ t ~ 
(223)- --~ 

(26) '""'II ~~~ 

DMJM HARRIS \[( 0\1 

;::: i t 3 0 9 4 ;o_ 2 .... fi "'~ i 'L 179{525) -"' l -~o 

~~ "'~"' l !:.a;-;;;; ~ - 92(138) \ON N ~ O ..,._ 
~ "'"'"' r 198!686> 

~ 
~ ·~ •.tt~nSt ~ 

t 

7 

11 

IS 

:i 
8\,llliloftd 

36(18)_}1 ~t ~ ... ' /.>, /~0~ 161(72)- ~ ~0 
' ~~C?p~ 68(14)'""'\j - "'" ~ ~ £:! ~";I .... tl 

"..: - ..... 

' 
VI 

8 
~ 

"'- ~ ~ ..,..,., _ 'L 35(37) ~ 'L (27) _....,...., 
N.::.C!. - 367(561) 

-co- c 
- (9) -"'- co- 0 ~ 

NO\- r 132(74) 
.:::.~~ 

r <3J 
~ ·~ ~ ·~ E~thAv FtpperOt 

~ t~ 
Whlttt')'SI 

~t~ ISO( 118)_}1 (188) __,. 

547(510)-
_ .,...., 

(14) - "'o _ "'~ .... 
~~~ ,..._~M 

452(213he (370) '""'II -:::.~ 
"'"'-~ -

12 ,I( ,)'; 

_;:::_l E 
'L ~ "' 'L 71(123) ..-oo (9) _ v:;~ ~::.!!l 

.... - .... - (3 19) 
,,..,_ 

- 22(15) _,....,. 
r (38) ... '"'"'' r 66(173) 

~ ·~ ~ + ~ 
M.MSt SlolleSt ----

(SO)_JI "'l. t~ 5(15) _JI ~t~ 
(383) - ~:::;:;;~ 7(27) - ~No 

-~- "'-"' 33(41) '""'\j - v -(76)'""'\j 0 --o " - ..... co-
"' 

.;; 

- - 1 'L "'--o (18) !::!.::.!!. -(I 51) 

~·~ 
r (14) 

SUI!•St 

(10) __,. ~t ~ 
(276) - 0\ 6~ 
(5) ~ 

.... 
~ 

XX ()(X) =AM (PM) 
peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.6 
SCENARIO 2a INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



li 
1 9 

J co 
0 "' l 
VI N 

~ 

~ :::;. 
._) 

W [dotP\Av + 

·u (88) l! '1 ., t --,<o ~ o;:o 
.r't- ~ ~ 

~E ~ ~ 

5 ,)( 

~N .E 
'L 70(45) g)~i 

!N- - 166(276) ......... 
~ ~"' , 111(67) 

.J + ~ 
M••nCjt 

232(196r-" ., t ~ 
246(267r+ ~~i 
216(146) .. "'...., ~ 0\;or::: 

"'"'"' ~ N 

9 ~ 

~ 
~ ~ 

'L - ~ l (27) ~~=-
=-=-~ - (2) 

.J+~ 
, (2) 

l~tiiSl 

(3 18) ..JI "l.t ~ 
(9) - <Xi~! 

(261) .. :::::._-

13 
,)1 

t 'L 
r;;v;u; l -

(23) 

!:!!:::.~ (103) 

.J+~ 
, (46) 

St.-.st 

(32)_;1 ., t ~ 
(168)- MN-..,.,.._11'1 

(16)--_ --~ 

li 
2 "'~ 2 

co~~~ 'L 254(157) v-- < 

~'i~ l - 154(130) 
~oo~ ~ r 39(o> 
.-J+~ 

ritStS1 (ut'SUAV 

1).t~ 38(152r" 
86(195)"+ ~ ~~ 

169(549n. l:n '\0 ..,. 
..... ~ 
V N 

6 
t s- It 

~~ ~ 'L 304(518) 0::::.~ 
00 VI 1"1 of - 206(259) -"',.... .,...,...,. 

, 95(209) 
.J + ~ 

Ecl:thAv 

., t ~ 29(35)_;1 
309(259)-

N;;v=;-
oovm 

124(155) .. Vt::::::. 
......... 0 

- "'"' N-

10 

-g 
'L 8 (32) M0\0 J: 

~~~ - (247) 

.J + ~ 
, (32) 

Mi\jn St 

(73) ..JI ., t ~ 
(332)- MCOtn 

~~~ 
(91) .. 

14 .;< 
~ 
E 'L 

N<OM 
(29) 

!:!=:!..=.. -(121} 

.J+~ 
r (30) 

S..ce~1 

(27)_;1 .,t~ 
(212)- --" "'""" (26)l! 

~o-

OM)M HARRIS ,£ l 0\1 

0\ i l 3 ,.., 9 4 "'~ 0 s "'~ i 'L 199(345} r:::"' ~ ~=;;; "'';z) 
';z) ..... l C0\00 ~ - 92(138) ..,. .... N ~ M 

"' 
,_...,.,... r 211 (5471 

~ 
.J ·~ 'dilllnSt J'q 

7 

11 

15 

S' "t.>. ltutkf'Rd 

36(18)_;1 .,t ~ ~ -._ /11:~ 161(72)- NO\r:": 

'%-~~ "'""" 68(14) .. 
-VIN 
,.., __ 
"'"""' \.., <;t o ,.... 

+.-. 
V N 

' 
,)1 8 

~ 

~ ~ "' - 'L 35(37) 
_:;;- 'L ..,..,., _ 
co~ 0 ~ (27) 

~2a 
- 371(465) :::. =- ~ ~ - (9) 

;:;;~:: 
, 132(74) , (3) 

.J+~ ~ ·~ £<t-th Av PtpperOr 

.,t~ 
Wtl•l,rySt .,t 150( 118)_;1 (185) ..JI ~ 

43 1(515)- ::-u;- M (14) - MSM o ..... ..,. "'"'"' 354 (218n. .:!.~ = (255) .. 
-o-

"'., 11'1 -"' "' 

12 ,)( ,)1 .. 
~ ~ N' 

'L 75(89) 'L (10) 00 -
;oa;c;o ~ """' ..... - ..... occ - (222) 

,.,.,_ 
- 22(15) _,.,,... , (16) N N V'l , 108(73) 

.J + ~ .J + ~ 
M•W\St St<1teSt ----

(53)_;1 "l_ t ~ 5(15)_;1 ., t ~ 
(342)'+ to ~~ 7(27) - ~ ~--t:.- <0 O lf'l 

(52)l! 33(41) .. - "'"' 0 --,.... ..,. "' 
"""' M 

,)1 

" j 
'L ;:::_r;;- (19) 

::..::.!:! - (146) 

.J ·~ 
r (1 4) 

StM•St 

(8)_;1 .,t~ 
(182)"+ SB§ 

(3)l! 
XX (XX) = AM (PM) 

peak hour volumes 

LOS ALTOS DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY 

Figure 3.7 
SCENARIO 2b INTERSECTION TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

AM (PM) Peak Hour 



_______________________ C_ it:;:;..:y_of l.os .qltos Ooa.,~Jtoa.,~J·J.\'i<te traffic all<l Parlcill!J J41lal.)fsis 

Table 3.3 Performance of Studied Intersections 

Signalized Existing No Build Scenario 1a Scenario 1b Scenario2a Scenario 2b 

Intersections 
LOS(AMIPM) LOS(AM/PM) LOS (AM/PM) LOS (AM/PM) LOS (AMIPM) LOS (AM/PM) 

1. Edith Ave. I Main St./ San Antonio Road - - - - - -
c C- E 0- F E 

2. San Antonio Road I B B- c c D c 
First Street B B C+ C+ C- c 

3. San Antonio Road I Foothill Expressway• B+ B C+ C+ c c 
B c F E F F 

4. Main Street I 8- B- C- c D· C-
Foothill Expressway" B- C+ C- c D- D 

5. Main Street I 8 8 8 B c C+ 
First Street B 8- C- C+ D- c 

6. Edith Avenue I c c D D+ E D 
Foothill Expressway C+ c c c D+ C-

7. 
Edith Avenue I A 8- C+ C+ E c 

First Street C+ C+ C- c D- D 

Existing No Build Scenario 1a Scenario 1b Scenario 2a Scenario 2b 
Unsignalized Intersections• 

LOS (AM/PM) LOS (AM/PM) LOS (AM/PM) LOS(AMIPM) LOS (AM/PM) LOS(AMIPM) 

8. San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive - - - - - -
F F F F F F 

9. 
San Antonio Road I - - - - - -

Lyell Street F F F F F F 

10. 
Main Street I - - - - - -

Second Street c c F 0 F F 

11. 
Main Street I - - - - - -
Third Street 8 B E c F 0 

12. 
State Street I A A B c 0 c 
First Street B B D c F F 

13. 
State Street I - - - - - -
Second Street B B c B c c 

14. State Street I - - - . . . 
Third Street B B c B c B 

15. 
State Street I . . . . . 

Fourth Street B B 8 B 8 B 
·cMP monitored intersections 
# LOS for two-way controlled intersection is calculated for each of the controlled movement; not for the intersection as a whole. 

IJ/'vtJIIIt ~-farris 3·10 Sep~14,~"7 



City of Los Altos Oow11town-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

The level of service standard defined as acceptable by the City of Los Altos is LOS D or better 
for City controlled intersections. Whereas, the Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) defines 
the acceptable operating level of service as LOS E or better for Congestion Management 
Program (CMP) designated intersections. However, even CMP intersections within the City of 
Los Altos are expected to meet the City's LOS requirements. 

Signalized Intersections 

Scenarios with more office development generate more traffic and hence, intersections 
perform at a lower level under Scenarios 1 a and 2a when compared with 1 b and 2b 
respectively. The LOS for the Edith Avenue I Main Street I San Antonio Road intersection 
changes from C- (No Build) to E under Scenarios 1 a and 2b, and to F for Scenario 2a during 
the PM peak. It is within the acceptable level under Scenario 1 b at LOS D-. With additional 
development, traffic is expected to increase in and around the downtown area. Mitigation 
measures at this intersection will be necessary if Scenario 1 a, 2a or 2b is adopted. 

The intersection of San Antonio Road I First Street is expected to perform within acceptable 
levels of service under all fou r scenarios during both the AM and PM peak hours. 

While the performance of the San Antonio Road I Foothill Expressway intersection meets both 
the City and CMP criteria during the AM peak, it becomes unacceptable during the PM peak 
for all the four scenarios. The average delay experienced by a vehicle is shorter for Scenario 
1 b and 2b when compared to 1 a and 2a respectively. Under Scenarios 1 a and 2a, there are 
more office developments that generate more trips. Intersections are expected to perform at a 
lower level under these scenarios. This can be seen during the AM peak as well , where the 
average delays are higher for Scenarios 1 a and 2a. 

The Main Street I Foothill Expressway intersection and the Main Street I First Street 
intersection are expected to perform within acceptable levels under all four scenarios during 
both the AM and PM peak hours. 

The intersections of Edith Avenue I Foothill Expressway and Edith Avenue I First Street are 
expected to perform within acceptable levels for all four scenarios except during the AM peak 
of Scenario 2a. As discussed above, Scenario 2a has the highest number of trips generated 
among the four scenarios. It is therefore expected that intersections may perform below 
acceptable level under this scenario. Mitigation measures at these intersection will be 
necessary if Scenario 2a is adopted for development eventually . 

Unsignalized Intersections 

Since neither the CMP nor the City of Los Altos have standards for unsigalized intersection, 
the minimum acceptable LOS will be defined at level D for the purpose of this study. As seen 
from Table 3.3, the two unsignalized intersections along San Antonio Road are already at 
LOS F under the existing traffic condition. As discussed in the Phase One report, LOS for 
two-way controlled intersection is calculated for each of the controlled movement; not for the 
intersection as a whole. San Antonio Road is a four-lane divided arterial , with a landscaped 
median island. Traffic volume on San Antonio Road is high. Drivers from the side-streets 
have to wait for gaps on both approaches (along San Antonio Road) which can take some 
time, especially during peak hours. As such, it is not surprising to see these intersections 

DMJM H;uris 3·11 September 14, 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

remain at LOS F under the four proposed scenarios since traffic volume along San Antonio 
Road is expected to be higher in the future. 

The intersection of State Street I First Street did not meet the satisfactory levels of service 
during the PM peak hour under Scenarios 2a and 2b. The Main Street I Third Street 
intersection LOS falls below acceptable level under Scenario 1 a and 2a, also during the PM 
peak hours. The intersection of Main Street I Second Street does not meet the acceptable 
criterion during the PM peak of Scenarios 1 a, 2a and 2b. Mitigation measures for these 
intersections should be investigated if the City decides to proceed with any of the 
intensification scenarios. 

The three unsignalized intersections along State Street will not be adversely impacted by any 
of the proposed scenarios. These intersections, namely State Street I Second Street, State 
Street I Third Street and State Street I Fourth Street, will perform at LOS C or better under all 
scenarios. There is sufficient capacity to meet the expected increased in traffic volume due to 
the proposed intensifications. 

3.3 Potential Mitigation Measures 

The Phase One report examined the merits of signalizing one or both of the (currently) 
unsignalized intersections along San Antonio Road. Looking at these two intersections 
independently, signalizing them will certainly improve their performance to LOS D or better 
under all four scenarios. The side streets could also be re-striped to provide either an 
exclusive left-turn or right-turn lane where possible to optimize the signalization capacity. 

However, as stated in the Phase One report, it may be more appropriate to signalize only the 
intersection of San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive due to the proximity of these two 
intersections. Signalizing this intersection will maintain smooth traffic flow on San Antonio 
Road while providing timed opportunities for side-street traffic to cross or turn left onto San 
Antonio Road. Drivers at the San Antonio Road I Lyell Street intersection can use the gaps in 
San Antonio Road traffic created by this traffic signal at Pepper Drive to also cross or turn 
onto San Antonio Road. If signalizing both San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive and San Antonio 
Road I Lyell Street is desirable, the signals should be interconnected to ensure smooth flow 
along San Antonio Road and to reduce drivers' frustration . A corridor computer simulation of 
San Antonio Road using a tool such as Synchro should be performed prior to making a 
decision on additional traffic signals for the corridor. Signalizing these intersections may 
encourage through traffic in the residential area, which would not be welcomed by the local 
residents. An alternative to signalizing these intersections is closing off the median island and 
allowing only right turns from the downtown area. This would also improve the level of service 
of these intersections to acceptable levels of service 
The Edith Avenue I Main Street I San Antonio Road intersection would operate at LOS F 
under Scenario 2a due to the high left turning volumes from Edith Avenue to San Antonio 
Road. An additional eastbound left-turn lane would improve the LOS of this intersection. The 
LOS will improve to an acceptable level under the worst case. 

Widening Edith Avenue will improve the performance of both the Edith Avenue I Foothill 
Expressway and Edith Avenue I First Street intersections. Another through lane on both 
approaches will bring the performance of Edith Avenue I Foothill Expressway to LOS D during 
the AM peak of Scenario 2a. Widening Edith Avenue would allow the provision of a through 

DMJMHarris 3-12 September 14, 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

and exclusive right-turn lane on both approaches at the intersection with First Street. The 
adverse impacts of the rezoning will be alleviated during the AM peak hour in Scenario 2a as 
well. 

For the two unsignalized intersections along Main Street, signalization is the only mitigation 
measure to improve the level of service. Widening the intersections without signalizing them 
would not be effective. However, signalizing these intersections with their existing lane 
configuration will improve conditions to an acceptable level of service. 

The intersection of State Street I First Street is the only 4-way stop intersection in the study 
area. Under the worst case scenario, through traffic along each approach of First Street 
ranges between 400-500 vehicles during the PM peak hour of Scenario 2b. An unsignalized 
intersection would not be able to accommodate th is traffic volume; signalization is the only 
way to mitigate the undesirable level of service. Reconfiguring First Street to provide an 
exclusive left-turn lane for both approaches will allow protected left-turns and thereby further 
improve the LOS. A summary of the potential mitigation measures are presented below in 
Table 3.4: 

Table 3.4 Potential Mit igation Measures 

Signalized 
Intersections 

Mitigation Measures Estimated Cost 

2nd left-turn lane Cost dependent on 
1. Edith Ave. I Main St./ San Antonio Road eastbound along Edith availability of right-of-way 

Ave 

Edith Avenue I Additional lane along Cost dependent on 
6. Foothill Expressway Edith Ave for both availability of right 

approaches 
Shared right-turn in both Cost dependent on 

7. Edith Avenue I directions change to availability of right 
First Street exclusive right and 

through lanes 

Unsignalized Intersections Mitigation Measures Estimated Cost 

8. San Antonio Road I Pepper Drive Signalization $250,000 

9. San Antonio Road I Signalization $250,000 
Lyell Street 

10. 
Main Street I 

Signalization $225,000 
Second Street 

11. Main Street I Signalization $225,000 
Third Street 

12. State Street I Signalization $225,000 
First Street 

OMJM H.-,rris 3 ·13 September 14. 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

3.4 Parking Analysis 

A parking demand survey was conducted for all the public parking within the study area during 
Phase One of the study. Tables 3.5 and 3.6 show the supply of spaces and their average 
occupancy respectively under existing conditions. The locations of public parking within the 
study area are presented in Figure 3.8. 

Table 3.5 Number of Public Parking Spaces 

Location Regular Spaces Handicap Spaces 
Plaza 1 127 4 
Plaza 2 126 6 
Plaza 3 204 5 
Plaza 4 61 1 
Plaza 5 53 6 
Plaza 6 68 4 
Plaza 7 123 6 
Plaza 8 122 9 
Plaza 9 134 7 
Plaza 10 90 2 
Sub-Tota l 1108 50 
Public Parking @ First 

70 1 
& Main 
State Street• 67 0 
Main Street 144 0 
1st Street 44 0 
2nd Street 13 0 
3rd Street 12 0 
Total (1509) 1458 51 
*One on-street park1ng spot along State Street unavailable for use due to construction 
Italic denotes on-street parking 

Table 3.6 Average Parking Occupancy(%) 
Weekday 

Off-Street On-Street 
10am 68.5 56.9 
11am 77.1 63.3 

12 noo n 86.3 84.5 
1pm 90.2 85.2 
2pm 85.0 75.0 
3pm 76.4 68.8 
4pm 73.9 68.6 
5pm 70.6 51 .3 
6pm 58.9 71 .6 
7pm 30.9 65.0 
8pm 29.4 39.8 
9pm 20.2 21 .7 
10pm 10.7 5.5 

DMJM Harns 3·14 September f4, 2007 



DOWNTOWN lOS AlTOS PAN KING 

...J 

iII 

~ 
~ 
C/) 
C/) 
w 
a: 
Q,. 

~ 
...J 
...J 

~ 
0 
0 ... 

140 All Day Stalls 

r: 
ll II ,J t I II I I 

~ ~~~-· ~Mm'j 
- · ·~J~ -- ~ 

' f fl. f. fl. fl f, #fl. fl I fl # f f f ."1 
- -

0 
0 

Source: City of Los Altos 

rT ;-r 
n f, ' 
~}~ 

Private Parking Stalls \ ] 
Available for Public ~.,, I 

Parking 11AM - 2 PM '/ 

Figure 3.8 
Downtown Parking Plan 

/( 

ALLDAY 

/ 

3HOUR/ ••• 
PERMIT PARKING 

3HOUR 

2HOUR 

20MIN. 

HAN1>1CAPPED 

LOADING ZONE I I 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

According to the ITE Transportation Planning Handbook, 85% occupancy of a parking lot is 
considered full for all practical purposes in parking studies. Under this condition, a driver 
looking for a parking space would have to circulate through several aisles of a parking lot or 
structure, or drive around one or more blocks for on-street parking, to find an available space. 
Driver frustration and complaints of insufficient parking increase rapidly when parking areas 
experience 85% or more occupancy. 

Currently, lunch time has the highest occupancy for both on-street and off-street parking and 
these parking facilities are considered 'fully occupied'. The amount of available parking during 
the peak periods are presented in Table 3.7. 

Table 3.7 Availability of Parking Spaces 

12 Noon 1pm 5pm 6pm 
Total #of #of #of #of 

Parking Number % spaces % spaces % spaces % spaces 
On-

280 15.5 43 14.8 41 48.7 136 29.4 82 
Street 
Off-

1178 13.7 161 9.8 115 28.4 334 41 .1 484 
Street 
Off-

Street 1108 13.7 151 9.8 108 28.4 314 41 .1 455 (Plaza 1-
1 0) 

Off-Street parking in Plaza 1 -10 is of particular concern in this study. The City considers 
these areas as the 'downtown parking district' . The proposed intensifications will have direct 
impact on these areas, particularly under Scenarios 2a and 2b. As such, the discussion that 
follows will look at situations within the downtown parking district in more detail. The expected 
parking demand for the different zones under the four proposed project scenarios are 
presented in Table 3.8. This is based on the parking availability at 1 pm and 5pm when 
parking demand is the highest. 

Table 3.8 Parking Demand for Proposed Intens ification 

Scenarios 1a 1b 2a 2b 

Zones Noon PM Noon PM Noon PM Noon PM 

6 1803 180 106 106 3051 305 179 179 

7 - - - - 220 22 13 13 

Total 1803 180 106 106 3271 327 192 182 

Existing 108 314 108 314 108 314 108 314 Availability 
Additional 1695 3163 13 84 

Space needed* - - - -

OMJM Htlrrts 3-16 September 14, 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

The proposed development intensifications could have an impact on all existing public 
parking. Based on the parking survey results, the peak hours for parking in the downtown 
area are 12 noon - 2pm and 5pm - 7pm. Provision of handicap spaces will be based on 
Americans with Disability Act and City guidelines but is not expected to have significant 
adverse impact. 

The future parking demand presented in Table 3.8 is the net parking required for each zone 
under the different scenarios. Zones 6 and 7 are within the downtown parking district and will 
have direct impact on the parking supply. The analysis took into consideration any shared 
parking possibilities between residential and office development during each time period. 
Parking provided for office development that has high usage during the day will be available 
for returning residents in the evening. As such, meeting the parking demand during the day 
would certain ly meet the parking needs during the evening. 

Parking generated as a resu lt of any additional office development would be competing with 
existing demand during the peak period in the day (i.e. the noon peak). In the downtown 
parking district as seen in Table 3.7, only 108 spaces are available for any additional 
development during the busiest parking hour (noon peak). This is significantly lower than the 
estimated demand for the future. Therefore, to meet the parking demand of the four future 
scenarios, up to 3200 more parking spaces are needed, depending on which intensification 
scenario is eventually adopted. Given the high number of parking spaces needed, a parking 
structure would be most probable to meet the demand. 

As seen from Table 3.8, adopting Scenario 2a will require the most number of additional 
parking spaces whereas adopting Scenario 1 b will require no additional parking at all within 
the parking district. Adopting Scenario 2b will require less than 100 additional parking within 
the downtown parking district. Development of additional office buildings will generate more 
parking demand during the weekday peak hours but will also result in having a large number 
of empty spaces during the off-peak periods (for example during the weekends). 

DMJMH.-uns 3-17 September 14, 2007 



City of Los Altos Downtown-Wide Traffic and Parking Analysis 

4.0 CONCLUSION 

Four development intensification scenarios were analyzed to determine their impact on the 
intersections within the study area, as well as the amount of additional parking necessary to 
support the proposed intensification. 

Given the intensity of the proposed changes, most signalized intersections need some 
improvements in order to support the increased traffic. This is especially true for scenarios 
that have high office developments. Many of the mitigation measures suggested in this report 
can be built into the long-term development plan of the City. The scenario that requires the 
least amount of intersection improvement work would be Scenario 1 b, which is mostly 
residential development. 

As the current supply of public parking spaces is close to its demand, additional development 
requires an increase in the parking supply. The study shows that up to 3200 additional 
parking spaces might be necessary to support the proposed changes to the Los Altos 
downtown area. This parking demand can be mitigated by a parking structure or by 
developing additional parking lots in the downtown area. 

DMJMHarns 4 - 1 September 14, 2007 



ATIACHMENTD 

fp 
FE H R & P EERS 
IRANSPORIAIION CONSULIA NIS 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: June 2, 2009 

To: James Walgren, City of Los Altos 

From: Joe Fernandez and Sohrab Rashid 

Subject: Los Altos Office and Retail Parking Standards 
SJOl-993 

This memorandum documents our review of office and retail parking standards for the City of Los 
Altos. The purpose of this study is to determine if changes to the City's parking standards for 
office and retail uses are justified. A brief summary of the key findings is provided below, followed 
by a detailed description of the study approach and results. 

SUMMARY 

The study includes three main components: 

• determine the parking demand characteristics at existing office and retail sites in the City 
of Los Altos, 

• review parking standards for nearby cities and industry-standard rates, and 

• recommend changes, if appropriate, to the City's parking standards. 

Parking occupancy counts were conducted at three office sites and three retail sites in Los Altos. 
Table 1 shows that significant variation occurred in the parking demand at the individual sites, but 
on average the demand was well below the supply required by the Los Altos Municipal Code. 

TABLE 1: PARKING DEMAND SUMMARY 

Observed Peak Demand (spacesl1,000 square feet)1 Code-Required Supply 

Site 1 Site 2 Site 3 Average (spacesl1 ,000 square feet)2 

Office Sites 1.89 2.08 2.57 2.06 4 

Retail Sites 4.74 2.21 5.98 3.82 5 

1. Demand is based on mid-week counts conducted October 18 & 20, 2007. The highest demand observed on either 
day is presented for each site. The average is the average peak of all surveyed days. 

2. Los Altos Municipal Code §14.74.080, 14.74.100. 
Source: Fehr & Peers, 2007 

A review of parking standards for nearby jurisdictions shows a range of 3.33 to 4.44 spaces 
required per 1,000 square feet (s.f.) of office uses and a range of 4 to 5.56 spaces required per 

160 West Santa Clara Street, Suite 675, San Jose CA 951 13 (408) 278-1700 Fax (408) 278-1717 
www. fehrandpeers. com 



Mr. James Walgren 
June 2, 2009 
Page 2 of 4 hHR & PU: R::, 

UAH'),Ottr.HfUH (0 ~\UI,I AHt\ 

1,000 s.f. of retail uses. The nearby jurisdictions' standards are within the range of rates provided 
in published references from the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) and Urban Land 
Institute (ULI). The City of Los Altos' parking standards are on the high end of both of these 
ranges, particularly for office uses. 

Reducing the number of parking spaces required for office uses is justified based on the 
information above. The maximum observed demand for office uses was 2.57 spaces per 1,000 
s.f. Based on requirements from other jurisdictions and industry-standard publications, it is likely 
that some offices will generate demand that would exceed this rate. We recommend a parking 
requirement of 3. 33 spaces per 1, 000 square feet for office uses. 

Limited justification can be made for changing the parking requirement for retail uses, because: 1) 
demand at one of the surveyed locations exceeded the code-required supply, and 2) retail 
parking demand in October (when the surveys were conducted) is typically below the peak 
demand in December. We do not recommend any changes to the retail parking requirements. 

STUDY APPROACH AND CONCLUSIONS 

This section documents the study approach and results, and describes the process used to 
develop the conclusions above. 

Parking Occupancy Counts of Existing Uses 

We conducted parking occupancy counts at three existing office and retail locations within the 
City of Los Altos on October 18 & 20, 2007. These locations were selected in consultation with 
the City, and were all isolated locations with designated parking lots. The office parking lots were 
counted on an hourly basis from 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM, and the retai l parking lots were counted on 
an hourly basis from 11 :00 AM to 4:00 PM to capture the peak parking demand periods for each 
of these uses. The October counts were supplemented with another count on February 12, 2008 
to check the accuracy of the initial counts. The raw counts are attached to this document. 

The City of Los Altos provided the square footage of the buildings served by the surveyed parking 
lots. The peak parking demand for each of the surveyed locations was calculated by dividing the 
maximum number of occupied spaces by the building size to yield the spaces demanded per 
1,000 square feet of building area. The resulting demand rates are summarized above in Table 1. 

Comparisons to Other Jurisdictions 

The parking standards for five nearby cities were reviewed and compared to Los Altos' standards, 
as summarized in Table 2. 

Sunnyvale has the highest office rate (4.44 per 1,000 s.f.), followed by Los Altos and Palo Alto (4 
per 1,000 s.f.). For retai l uses, most surveyed jurisdictions required either 4 or 5 spaces per 1,000 
s.f., with the exception of Sunnyvale, which has a sliding scale depending on the size of the 
shopping center. 



Mr. James Walgren 
June 2, 2009 
Page 3 of 4 

TABLE 2: CITY PARKING STANDARDS 

fP 
F ~IIR & P HR'I 
I • .A"U QtiAr(O"' l'f\ UA 'III\ 

Jurisdiction Office Rate (per 1 ,000 s.f.) Retail Rate (per 1,000 s .f.)1 

Los A ltos2 4 5 

Cupertino3 3.51 4 

Mountain View4 3.33 4 

Palo A lto5 4 5 

Redwood Citl 3.33-4 5 

Sunnyvale7 4.44 4.44 - 5- 5.56 

Rates In Special Districts 

Los Altos2 5 N/A 

Palo Alto5 3.22-3.33 4.17 

Redwood City6 3.33 N/A 

Notes: 

1 Rates for intensive retail uses reported when differentiated from extensive uses. 

2 Los Altos Municipal Code §14.74.080, 14.74.090, 14.74.100. Special districts are OA-1 , OA-4.5, and CN. 

3 Cupertino Municipal Code §19.100.040. 

4 Mountain View City Code §36.37.040. 

5 Palo Alto Municipal Code §18.83.050. Special district office rates for buildings in the California Avenue (3.22) 
and LM (3.33) districts. 

6 Redwood City Zoning Code §30.2.2. Office rates for buildings generating less than 100 trips (4) and 100 or more 
trips (3.33) during the PM peak period. 

7 Sunnyvale Municipal Code §19.46.050. Retail rates for shopping centers smaller than 20.000 s.f. (5.56), 20,000 
- 50,000 s.f. (5), and larger than 50,000 s.f. (4.44). 

Sources: Codes retrieved online. October 19, 2007. 

Comparison to Industry-Standard Rates 

ITE's Parking Generation and ULI's Shared Parking manuals provide parking supply and demand 
rates based on surveys of similar land uses across the country. Table 3 summarizes the data 
provided in these documents. 

TABLE 3: INDUSTRY-STANDARD RATES1 

ITE's Parking Generation (:fd Edition/ ULI's Shared Parking (2"d Editionl 

A verage Peak Demand 851
h Percentile Demand Recommended Supply 

Office Uses 2.84 3.44 3.8 

Retai l Uses 3.76 5.06 3.6 

1. All units are spaces per 1,000 square feet floor area, and weekday rates are reported. 

2. Office land use code 701, suburban area. Retail land use code 820 (shopping center), in December. 

3. Office land use reported for <25,000 s.f. size; rates drop for larger offices. Retail land use is community shopping 
center, <400,000 s.f.. in December. 



Mr. James Walgren 
June 2, 2009 
Page 4 of 4 

fp 
F ~II R & p ll: R~ 
I.AH\1'0.1AII01f (DN'\UlfANf1j 

ITE provides parking demand rates, while ULI provides recommended supply rates. The demand 
rates are based on the peak occupancy of surveyed parking lots. The average peak demand 
refers to the average of the maximum demand rates observed at the surveyed sites, while the 
851

h percentile demand is the point where 85 percent of the surveyed rates are below, and 15 
percent of the rates are above it. 

The recommended supply is typically estimated by adding a circulation factor to the observed 
demand. This factor, which varies by land use type, represents the inherent inefficiencies of 
parking lots and reflects the fact that parking lots are effectively ful l once 85 to 95 percent of the 
available spaces are occupied. A circulation factor of 90 percent is commonly applied at office 
sites because most of the parking is occupied by employees who are familiar with the site, and 
because employees typically park for a long time, resulting in low levels of parking turnover. A 
lower circulation factor, typically 85 percent, is applied to retail parking supplies due to large 
amounts of turnover and because shoppers typically have the flexibility to shop elsewhere if they 
think that no spaces are available. Accordingly, a parking supply can be equated to parking 
demand by multiplying the supply by the circu lation factor. For example, an office parking lot with 
a supply of 100 spaces would be expected to accommodate a peak demand of 90 vehicles (90 
percent of 100). 

ULI's Shared Parking also provides demand rates by month of the year, based on surveys of 
shopping centers throughout the country. The parking demand for retail uses peaks during the 
December shopping season. Retail parking demand during December is about 30 percent higher 
than during October. Parking demand for office uses is consistent throughout the year, with little 
variation from month to month. 

Conclusions 

Both the ITE and ULI rates presented above represent conditions on a weekday in December. In 
October, surveys from ULI's Shared Parking show that parking demand at retai l uses is about 70 
percent of the demand in December. Office parking demand is the same in October and 
December. 

Because retail parking demand is approximately 30 percent higher in December than October, it 
is likely that the surveyed retai l sites would experience higher parking demand during December 
than what we observed in the field in October. Increasing the average observed peak demand of 
3.82 (from Table 1) by 30 percent yields a demand of 5 spaces per 1,000 s.f. This, in conjunction 
with the rates from nearby jurisdictions and the industry-standard rates, suggests that the current 
parking standard for retail uses is appropriate, and there is little justification to change the retail 
parking requirements. We do not recommend any changes to the retail parking requirements. 

No such disparity between October and December parking demand is expected for offices, which 
experience consistent demand levels throughout the year. The highest parking demand at the 
three surveyed locations was 2.57 spaces per 1,000 s.f. A supply rate of 2.86 spaces per 1,000 
s.f. would accommodate this demand, assuming a 90 percent circulation factor (2.86*.90=2.57). 
This rate is well below the rates required by nearby jurisdictions as well as the industry-standard 
rates, so we do not recommend using it directly, but instead suggest adding a 0.5 space per 
1,000 s.f. buffer to this rate to account for potential higher demand rates at unsurveyed sites. This 
yields a supply rate of 3.33 spaces per 1,000 s.f. , which is within the range of rates for nearby 
jurisdictions and industry standard publications. We recommend changing the parking 
requirement for offices to 3. 33 spaces per 1, 000 square feet. 



fp 
FEIIR & P FERS 
TRANS PORTAIION COHSIILTAN IS 

APPENDIX: 
Data Summary 

Raw Counts 

160 West Santa Clara Street, Suite 675, San Jose CA 95113 (408) 278-1700 Fax (408) 278-1717 
www. feh randpeers.com 



Los Altos Parking Summary 

Office Sites 
Survey Peak Peak 
Dates Occupancy Demand 

Packard Founda~on 10/17/2007 32 1.55 
200 Second Street 10/18/2007 39 1.89 

Multi-tenant office bu ilding 10/17/ 2007 159 2.08 
5150 El Camino Real 10/18/2007 157 2.05 

Real estate offices 10/17/2007 84 2.57 
161 & 167 So. San Anton io Rd. 10/18/2007 72 2.20 

Average peak 2.06 
Min 1.55 
Max 2.57 



Los Altos Parking Summary 

Retail Sites 
Survey Peak Peak 
Dates Occupancy Demand 

Foothil l Plaza 10/18/2007 248 4.74 
2310 & 2350 Homestead Rd. 10/20/2007 225 4.3 

Elephant Pharmacy 10/18/2007 21 1.5 
4470 El Camino Real 10/20/2007 31 2.21 

Village Court Shopping Center 10/18/2007 220 5.98 
4546 El Camino Real 10/20/2007 153 4.16 

Average peak 3.82 
Min 1.5 
Max 5.98 



Office Sites 

Packard Foundation 
300 Second Street 

Multi-tenant office bui lding 
5150 El Camino Real 

Real estate offices 
161 - 167 So. San Antonio Rd. 

Retail Sites 

Foothill Plaza 
2310 & 2350 Homestead Rd. 

Elephant Pharmacy 
4470 El Camino Real 

Village Court Shopping Center 
4546 El Camino Real 

Size (square feet) 

20,632 

76,400 

32,738 

52,315 

14,004 

36,800 



161-167 San Antonio DATE: 10-17-07 RECORDER: MARWIN 
SEVILLE FINANCIAL HANDICAPPED UNMARKED LOWER LEVEL TOTAL 

# SPACES 41 41 2 6 39 129 
9:00 15 11 0 1 9 36 
9:30 17 17 0 2 11 47 
10:00 21 21 0 2 10 54 
10:30 17 19 0 4 12 52 
11:00 18 20 0 2 12 52 
11:30 21 24 0 3 13 61 
12:00 27 20 0 4 12 63 
12:30 24 22 0 3 15 64 
1:00 24 26 0 4 17 71 
1:30 22 24 0 5 14 65 
2:00 26 24 0 5 14 69 
2:30 26 22 0 6 17 71 
3:00 35 27 0 3 19 84 

161- 167 San Antonio DATE: 10-18-07 RECORDER: MARWIN 
SEVILLE FINANCIAL HANDICAPPED UNMARKED LOWER LEVEL TOTAL 

#SPACES 41 41 2 6 39 129 
9:00 11 9 0 1 8 29 
9:30 15 14 0 6 9 44 
10:00 18 16 0 6 10 50 
10:30 20 15 0 6 12 53 
11:00 22 19 0 3 12 56 
11:30 20 23 0 4 14 61 
12:00 24 20 0 3 12 59 
12:30 22 22 0 4 10 58 
1:00 23 24 0 5 15 67 
1:30 25 26 0 4 17 72 
2:00 31 17 0 6 12 66 
2:30 27 23 0 5 11 66 
3:00 30 23 0 5 13 71 



2310-2350 Homestead Road 
Foothill Plaza DATE: 10-18-07 RECORDER: A. LEONARD 

UNMARKED 10 MIN WELLS FARGO MOTORCYCLE HANDICAP UNDEFINED TOTAL 
# SPACES 298 3 6 4 9 45 365 

11:00 166 2 5 0 3 33 209 
11:30 178 2 5 0 2 33 220 
12:00 190 2 5 0 5 36 238 
12:30 172 3 5 0 3 40 223 
1:00 196 2 5 0 4 41 248 
1:30 187 3 5 0 3 34 232 
2:00 193 2 6 0 5 29 235 
2:30 177 2 6 0 6 30 221 
3:00 170 3 6 0 6 23 208 
3:30 177 3 5 0 4 27 216 
4:00 172 3 6 0 3 28 212 

Foothill Plaza DATE: 10- 20-07 RECORDER: A. LEONARD 
UNMARKED 10 MIN WELLS FARGO MOTORCYCLE HANDICAP UNDEFINED TOTAL 

#SPACES 298 3 6 4 9 45 365 
11:00 196 2 6 0 3 16 223 
11:30 190 2 6 0 5 19 222 
12:00 180 3 6 0 5 18 212 
12:30 163 3 6 0 3 19 194 
1:00 192 3 6 0 4 17 222 
1:30 178 2 6 0 0 19 205 
2:00 191 2 6 0 1 19 219 
2:30 191 3 5 0 3 20 222 
3:00 168 2 4 0 1 18 193 
3:30 178 3 6 0 2 19 208 
4 :00 198 3 5 0 2 17 225 



4470 El Camino Real 
Elephant Pharm DATE:10-18-07 

UNMARKED HANDICAP TOTAL 
# SPACES 65 3 68 

11:00 15 0 15 
11:30 9 0 9 
12:00 15 0 15 
12:30 21 0 21 

1:00 18 1 19 
1:30 19 1 20 
2:00 17 1 18 
2:30 16 0 16 
3:00 17 0 17 
3:30 16 0 16 
4:00 15 0 15 

Elephant Pharm DATE: 10-20-07 
UNMARKED HANDICAP TOTAL 

# SPACES 65 3 68 
11:00 25 0 25 
11:30 31 0 31 
12:00 24 0 24 
12:30 9 0 9 

1:00 26 0 26 
1:30 20 0 20 
2:00 21 0 21 
2:30 25 0 25 
3:00 21 0 21 
3:30 25 0 25 
4:00 14 0 14 



4546 El Camino Real 
Vi llage Court DATE: 10-18-07 RECORDER JIM LEONARD 

UNMARKEC 15 MIN HERITAGE 30 MIN HANDICAP TOTAL 
# SPACES 266 3 10 2 4 285 

11:00 142 1 1 1 0 145 
11:30 163 1 1 2 1 168 
12:00 185 2 3 3 2 195 
12:30 200 3 3 3 1 210 
1:00 212 2 3 1 2 220 
1:30 190 2 2 1 1 196 
2:00 154 2 1 2 1 160 
2:30 140 1 2 1 0 144 
3:00 127 1 2 1 0 131 
3:30 124 2 1 2 1 130 
4:00 125 1 1 2 1 130 

Vil lage Court DATE: 10-20-07 RECORDER JIM LEONARD 
UNMARKE[ 15 MIN HERITAGE 30 MIN HANDICAP TOTAL 

#SPACES 266 3 10 2 4 285 
11:00 106 1 1 1 0 109 
11:30 106 1 2 2 1 112 
12:00 116 3 4 2 1 126 
12:30 113 3 5 1 1 123 
1:00 144 3 3 1 2 153 
1:30 140 2 3 1 1 147 
2:00 128 1 2 2 0 133 
2:30 88 1 2 1 0 92 
3:00 88 1 1 1 1 92 
3:30 80 1 1 2 1 85 
4:00 70 1 1 2 1 75 



5150 ECR DATE:10- 17-07 
UNMARKED HANDICAP TOTAL 

:ft SPACES 290 4 294 
9:00 68 0 68 
9:30 91 0 91 
10:00 106 0 106 
10:30 119 0 119 
11:00 134 0 134 
11:30 132 0 132 
12:00 129 0 129 
12:30 125 1 126 
1:00 127 0 127 
1:30 131 0 131 
2:00 134 0 134 
2:30 148 0 148 
3:00 159 0 159 

5150 ECR DATE: 10-18-07 
UNMARKED HANDICAP TOTAL 

#SPACES 290 4 294 
9:00 64 0 64 
9:30 73 0 73 
10:00 99 0 99 
10:30 114 0 114 
11:00 126 0 126 
11:30 131 0 131 
12:00 137 0 137 
12:30 138 0 138 
1:00 144 0 144 
1:30 141 0 141 
2:00 146 0 146 
2:30 151 0 151 
3:00 157 0 157 



300 2nd Street 
PACKARD DATE:10-17-07 RECORDER HARVEY 

UNMARKEC VISITOR HANDICAP UNMARKEC MAIL VAN HANDICAP TOTAL 
#SPACES 7 10 1 63 1 3 85 

9:00 5 1 0 20 0 0 26 
9:30 5 3 0 21 0 0 29 

10:00 5 3 0 21 0 0 29 
10:30 4 2 0 22 0 0 28 
11:00 3 3 0 22 0 0 28 
11:30 5 4 0 21 0 0 30 
12:00 3 3 0 22 0 0 28 
12:30 4 3 0 22 0 0 29 
1:00 4 3 0 21 0 0 28 
1:30 4 4 0 21 0 0 29 
2:00 4 6 0 22 0 0 32 
2:30 4 6 0 22 0 0 32 
3:00 4 5 0 22 0 0 31 

PACKARD DATE: 10-18-07 RECORDER HARVEY 
UNMARKEC VISITOR HANDICAP UNMARKEC MAIL VAN HANDICAP TOTAL 

#SPACES 7 10 1 63 1 3 85 
9:00 7 7 0 21 0 0 35 
9:30 7 7 0 22 0 0 36 

10:00 7 9 0 23 0 0 39 
10:30 7 8 0 24 0 0 39 
11:00 5 8 0 25 0 1 39 
11:30 6 7 0 24 0 0 37 
12:00 6 7 0 24 0 0 37 
12:30 5 7 0 24 0 0 36 
1:00 5 8 0 24 0 0 37 
1:30 5 5 0 24 0 0 34 
2:00 4 4 0 23 0 0 31 
2:30 4 4 0 23 0 0 31 
3:00 4 4 0 23 0 0 31 


